

IN THE UNITED STATES COURT OF APPEALS  
FOR THE ELEVENTH CIRCUIT

---

No. 20-12691-J

---

IN RE: JOHNATHON KELLY,

Petitioner.

---

Application for Leave to File a Second or Successive  
Motion to Vacate, Set Aside,  
or Correct Sentence, 28 U.S.C. § 2255(h)

---

Before: WILSON, NEWSOM and LUCK, Circuit Judges.

BY THE PANEL:

Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 2255(h) and 2244(b)(3)(A), Johnathon Kelly has filed an application seeking an order authorizing the district court to consider a second or successive motion to vacate, set aside, or correct his federal sentence, 28 U.S.C. § 2255. Such authorization may be granted only if we certify that the second or successive motion contains a claim involving:

(1) newly discovered evidence that, if proven and viewed in light of the evidence as a whole, would be sufficient to establish by clear and convincing evidence that no reasonable factfinder would have found the movant guilty of the offense; or

(2) a new rule of constitutional law, made retroactive to cases on collateral review by the Supreme Court, that was previously unavailable.

28 U.S.C. § 2255(h). “The court of appeals may authorize the filing of a second or successive application only if it determines that the application makes a prima facie showing that the application satisfies the requirements of this subsection.” *Id.* § 2244(b)(3)(C); *see also Jordan v.*

Appendix A

*Sec'y, Dep't of Corr.*, 485 F.3d 1351, 1357-58 (11th Cir. 2007) (explaining that our determination that an applicant has made a *prima facie* showing that the statutory criteria have been met is simply a threshold determination).

We must dismiss a proposed claim that was presented in a § 2255 motion that was adjudicated. *Randolph v. United States*, 904 F.3d 962, 964 (11th Cir. 2018); *see* 28 U.S.C. § 2244(b)(1). “[A] claim is the same where the basic gravamen of the argument is the same, even where new supporting evidence or legal arguments are added.” *In re Baptiste*, 828 F.3d 1337, 1339 (11th Cir. 2016). The bar on previously presented claims is jurisdictional. *In re Bradford*, 830 F.3d 1273, 1277-78 (11th Cir. 2016).

Kelly is a federal prisoner serving a 132-month sentence for transporting a minor with intent to engage in sexual activity, in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 2423(a). Kelly pled guilty to his offense in 2014 and was sentenced that same year. He filed his original § 2255 motion in 2017, which the district court denied with prejudice as untimely. We denied a certificate of appealability.

In relevant part, Kelly asserted the following claims in his § 2255 motion: (1) his counsel was ineffective for advising him against pursuing a fair evidentiary hearing as to evidence that was going to be presented; (2) the district court improperly credited law enforcement testimony that was contradicted by video evidence; (3) prosecutors engaged in misconduct by ignoring text message evidence on his accuser’s cell phone and statements in his accuser’s recantation letter suggesting that his accuser did everything of her own free will; (4) the government committed prosecutorial misconduct by allowing false information to remain in its case file, specifically information suggesting that he forced his accuser to commit sex acts; and (5) investigators engaged

in misconduct by seeking search warrants and providing statements despite inconsistencies that would have shown his accuser to be unreliable. In relevant part, Kelly supported his original § 2255 motion by stating that: (1) text message evidence would prove his innocence and including citations to specific messages showing that his accuser was acting of her own free will; and (2) a recantation letter from his accuser showed that she was acting of her own free will.

In his present application, Kelly seeks our authorization to present a claim of actual innocence based on evidence he states will show that his accuser made false accusations against him and that he did not intend to cause his accuser to engage in prostitution. He argues specifically that: (1) text messages would show that he urged his accuser to avoid prostitution; (2) text messages and his accuser's recantation letter would show that he had a legal business intent to form an escort company for the duration of his offense conduct; (3) text messages would show that his accuser was adamant about engaging in prostitution even though he did not condone it; (4) his counsel was ineffective for failing to investigate or present that text message evidence; (5) prosecutors used false statements from his accuser and false testimonies from law enforcement, in the files and records of his case, to unconstitutionally convict him; and (6) his appointed counsel was ineffective for not seeking to suppress false testimony, primarily by failing to move for another suppression hearing.

In his application, Kelly describes text messages between him and his accuser, which he states he reviewed before pleading guilty. He also presents, as the clearest evidence showing his legal business intent, his accuser's recantation letter dated March 19, 2013.

Kelly presented in his initial § 2255 motion the basic legal gravamen of all his present claims except that his counsel was ineffective for failing to investigate or present text message

evidence and that text messages would show that he had a legal business intent. We accordingly dismiss Kelly's application as to all but those two claims, as we lack jurisdiction to consider the others. *See Bradford*, 830 F.3d at 1277-78.

As to the two new claims, neither of them relies on any newly discovered evidence. *See* 28 U.S.C. § 2255(h)(1). Kelly primarily supports his claim that he had a legal business intent with his accuser's recantation letter, but he states that the recantation letter was written four years before he filed his initial § 2255 motion and he referenced explicit statements from the letter in that motion, indicating that he knew about the letter and its contents at that time. Kelly also discussed in his initial § 2255 motion the text messages he now references and, in his present application, states that defense counsel provided the text message evidence he sought and that he reviewed that evidence before pleading guilty. Thus, while Kelly may argue that his counsel was ineffective for failing to adequately investigate or present the evidence he now contends shows his innocence, he does not argue, nor can he establish, that such evidence is newly discovered. The evidence existed, and Kelly was aware of it, before he pled guilty in 2014 and well before he filed his initial § 2255 motion in 2017.

Nor do the two new claims, or any of Kelly's claims for that matter, rely on Supreme Court decisions that announced a new rule of constitutional law. *See* 28 U.S.C. § 2255(h)(2). Kelly does not contend otherwise, and even if he did, none of the Supreme Court decisions he cites in his application was decided after his initial § 2255 proceedings.

Accordingly, because Kelly has failed to make a *prima facie* showing of the existence of either of the grounds set forth in 28 U.S.C. § 2255(h) as to his two new claims and we lack

jurisdiction to consider his other claims, his application for leave to file a second or successive § 2255 motion is DISMISSED IN PART and DENIED IN PART.

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT  
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF GEORGIA  
ATLANTA DIVISION

JOHNATHON KELLY,

Movant,

v.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

Respondent.

CRIMINAL ACTION NO.

1:13-CR-108-ELR

CIVIL ACTION NO.

1:20-CV-1831-ELR

**ORDER**

Presently before the Court is the Magistrate Judge's Report and Recommendation (R&R), [Doc. 125], recommending that the pending 28 U.S.C. § 2255 motion to vacate, [Doc. 123], be denied. Movant has filed his objections in response to the R&R, [Doc. 127], as well as a motion to amend his § 2255 motion, [Doc. 128].

A district judge has broad discretion to accept, reject, or modify a magistrate judge's proposed findings and recommendations. United States v. Raddatz, 447 U.S. 667, 680 (1980). Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 636(b)(1), the Court reviews any portion of the Report and Recommendation that is the subject of a proper objection on a *de novo* basis and any non-objected portion under a "clearly erroneous" standard. "Parties filing objections to a magistrate's report and recommendation must specifically identify those findings objected to. Frivolous, conclusive or general objections need

Appendix B

not be considered by the district court.” Marsden v. Moore, 847 F.2d 1536, 1548 (11th Cir. 1988).

As recounted by the Magistrate Judge, on June 30, 2014, Movant entered a negotiated guilty plea in this Court to transporting a minor in interstate commerce for prostitution, and on September 12, 2014, this Court sentenced Movant to 132 months of imprisonment to be followed by twenty years of supervised release. He did not appeal. On March 15, 2017, Movant filed a § 2255 motion that was denied as untimely, and the Eleventh Circuit affirmed that dismissal.

Because he has already sought § 2255 relief, the pending motion is successive, and the Magistrate Judge correctly points out that this Court lacks jurisdiction to review it because Movant has failed to obtain preauthorization from the Eleventh Circuit. United States v. Holt, 417 F.3d 1172, 1175 (11th Cir. 2005). As such, the motion must be denied.

In his objections, Movant contends that he is actually innocent and has text messages from the minor whom he trafficked to prove it. Movant also states that he raised his actual innocence claim in his first § 2255 motion, and contends that this Court should have, but did not, hold a hearing regarding his actual innocence claim. He thus argues that he was not given a full and fair hearing with respect to his first § 2255 motion, and the current § 2255 motion is therefore not successive under

Magwood v. Patterson, 561 U.S. 320, 335 (2010) (“[T]he phrase ‘second or successive’ would not apply to a claim that the petitioner did not have a full and fair opportunity to raise previously.”). However, Movant did raise his claim previously; this Court rejected that claim, and the Eleventh Circuit affirmed.

In response to Movant’s argument that this Court should have held a hearing on his claim of actual innocence, this Court first acknowledges that a viable claim of actual innocence can toll the operation of the § 2255 statute of limitations. However, in order for that to happen, the movant must present “evidence of innocence so strong that a court cannot have confidence in the outcome of the trial unless the court is also satisfied that the trial was free of nonharmless constitutional error.” McQuiggin v. Perkins, 569 U.S. 383, 401 (2013) (quotation and citation omitted). In rejecting Movant’s claim of actual innocence, this Court found that Movant had failed to present *any* “‘new reliable evidence’ that might support a claim of actual innocence.” [Doc. 105 at 11]. As such, there was clearly no requirement to hold a hearing. Accordingly, it is clear that Movant had a full and fair opportunity to litigate his claim in his first § 2255 motion, and the now-pending motion is successive.

Moreover, if Petitioner has compelling evidence of his innocence, he can present that to the Eleventh Circuit in a motion to file a second or successive § 2255 motion. This Court notes, however, that if he has text messages that prove his

innocence, he should provide copies of those messages to the Eleventh Circuit along with his motion.

Finally, this Court has reviewed Movant's proposed amended § 2255 motion and concludes that a series of plans for social services organizations and religious organizations, as well as Movant's movie script, do nothing to demonstrate that he is entitled to § 2255 relief.

Having reviewed the record in light of Movant's objections, this Court concludes that the Magistrate Judge is correct. Accordingly, the R&R, [Doc. 125], is hereby **ADOPTED** as the order of this Court, and the § 2255 motion, [Doc. 123] is **DENIED**. Movant's motion to amend his § 2255 motion, [Doc. 128], is **DENIED** as futile.

This Court further agrees with the Magistrate Judge that Movant has failed to make "a substantial showing of the denial of a constitutional right," and a Certificate of Appealability is **DENIED** pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 2253(c)(2).

The Clerk is **DIRECTED** to close civil action number 1:20-CV-1831-ELR.

**IT IS SO ORDERED**, this 25<sup>th</sup> day of June, 2020.

*Eleanor L. Ross*

ELEANOR L. ROSS  
UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE

IN THE UNITED STATES COURT OF APPEALS  
FOR THE ELEVENTH CIRCUIT

---

No. 18-13708-A

---

JOHNATHON KELLY,

Petitioner-Appellant,

versus

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

Respondent-Appellee.

---

Appeal from the United States District Court  
for the Northern District of Georgia

---

ORDER:

On March 15, 2017, Kelly filed the instant 28 U.S.C. § 2255 motion raising four grounds for relief. Kelly argued that his § 2255 motion was not untimely because, after sentencing, he told counsel that he wanted to appeal. Counsel said that he would not assist him on appeal but told Kelly that, after he filed the notice of appeal, the government would appoint appellate counsel for him. Kelly then stopped contacting counsel and waited to hear from appellate counsel, but when he heard nothing from counsel or the courts, he inquired of the Clerk of Court, who informed him that he had no appeal pending.

The government responded by arguing that Kelly's § 2255 motion was untimely and that there was no basis for equitable tolling. Kelly replied that he was entitled to equitable tolling because his counsel promised to file a notice of appeal but failed to do so.

Appendix C

A magistrate judge issued a report and recommendation ("R&R"), recommending that Kelly's § 2255 motion be dismissed as time-barred, equitable tolling not apply, and a certificate of appealability ("COA") be denied. The district court adopted the R&R, denied Kelly's § 2255 as time-barred, and denied a COA. Kelly filed a notice of appeal from the district court's order denying his § 2255 motion. Kelly also filed a motion for leave to proceed IFP on appeal, which the district court denied. Kelly now moves this Court for a COA and IFP status.

### Timeliness

In order to obtain a COA, a movant must make "a substantial showing of the denial of a constitutional right." 28 U.S.C. § 2253(c)(2). Where the district court has denied a motion to vacate on procedural grounds, the movant must show that jurists of reason would find debatable (1) whether the motion states a valid claim of the denial of a constitutional right, and (2) whether the district court was correct in its procedural ruling. *Slack v. McDaniel*, 529 U.S. 473, 484 (2000).

The Antiterrorism and Effective Death Penalty Act ("AEDPA") imposes a one-year statute of limitations for filing a § 2255 motion that begins to run from the latest of four possible events. Relevant here, the limitations period for filing a § 2255 motion begins to run on the date on which the judgment of conviction becomes final. 28 U.S.C. § 2255(f). Here, the district court correctly determined that Kelly's § 2255 motion was untimely. Kelly's judgment became final on September 30, 2014. Kelly did not file the instant § 2255 motion until March 15, 2017, which was more than one year after his conviction and sentence became final. Thus, his § 2255 motion was untimely.

Appendix C

Equitable Tolling

The AEDPA limitations period may be equitably tolled, but the petitioner must show “(1) that he has been pursuing his rights diligently, and (2) that some extraordinary circumstance stood in his way and prevented timely filing.” *Holland v. Florida*, 560 U.S. 631, 649 (2010) (quotation omitted). Equitable tolling is “an extraordinary remedy [that] is typically applied sparingly.” *Arthur v. Allen*, 452 F.3d 1234, 1252 (11th Cir. 2006) (quotation omitted). The diligence required for equitable tolling purposes is reasonable diligence, not maximum feasible diligence. *See Holland*, 560 U.S. at 653.

Here, equitable tolling does not apply, even if counsel’s failure to file an appeal could be construed as attorney abandonment, and, thus, qualify as an extraordinary circumstance that stood in the way of Kelly timely filing his § 2255 motion, because Kelly did not act with reasonable diligence. *See Cadet v. Fla. Dep’t of Corrs.*, 853 F.3d 1216, 1236 (11th Cir. 2017) (holding that attorney abandonment meets the extraordinary circumstance element for equitable tolling). By Kelly’s own admission, he waited more than 28 months after his conviction became final to inquire into the status of his appeal. Kelly did not exercise reasonable diligence, particularly because the appeal window ended 14 days after sentencing. A duly diligent person in Kelly’s circumstances could have unearthed the information that his counsel failed to file a direct appeal any time after the 14-day deadline for filing the appeal passed.

In light of the above, this Court DENIES Kelly’s motion for a COA on his § 2255 motion. Consequently, this Court also DENIES his motion for IFP status as moot.

/s/ Robin S. Rosenbaum  
UNITED STATES CIRCUIT JUDGE

Appendix C

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT  
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF GEORGIA  
ATLANTA DIVISION

JOHNATHON KELLY,  
BOP Reg # 64587-019,  
Movant,

v.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,  
Respondent.

CIVIL ACTION NO.  
1:17-CV-995-ELR

CRIMINAL ACTION NO.  
1:13-CR-108-ELR-JSA-1

MOTION TO VACATE  
28 U.S.C. § 2255

ORDER

The Court has adopted the Magistrate Judge's recommendation that Movant's 28 U.S.C. § 2255 motion be dismissed as time-barred. (Docs. 105, 113). For the same reasons, the Court **ADOPTS** the Magistrate Judge's recommendation that Movant be **DENIED** a certificate of appealability ("COA") and **DENIES** Movant's motions for appointment of counsel (Doc. 111) and a writ of mandamus (Doc. 112). Without a COA, Movant may not proceed on appeal, and therefore his motion for leave to proceed *in forma pauperis* ("IFP") on appeal (Doc. 116) is **DENIED** as moot. Movant must address any further requests in this regard to the Eleventh Circuit.

SO ORDERED this 18<sup>th</sup> day of September, 2018.

Eleanor L. Ross  
ELEANOR L. ROSS  
UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE

Appendix D

IN THE UNITED STATES COURT OF APPEALS  
FOR THE ELEVENTH CIRCUIT

No. 18-13708-A

JOHNATHON KELLY,

Petitioner-Appellant,

versus

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

Respondent-Appellee.

Appeal from the United States District Court  
for the Northern District of Georgia

Before: JORDAN and ROSENBAUM, Circuit Judge.s

BY THE COURT:

Johnathon Kelly has filed a motion for reconsideration, pursuant to 11th Cir. R. 27-2, of this Court's January 24, 2019, order denying his motions for a certificate of appealability and leave to proceed *in forma pauperis* on appeal. Upon review, his motion for reconsideration is DENIED because he has offered no meritorious arguments to warrant relief.

Appendix E

## Appendix F

These pages are arranged in the order in which they are presented in the petition.

|     |                                                     |                                  |      |                                                                                                                                                                                            |
|-----|-----------------------------------------------------|----------------------------------|------|--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|
| 669 | To: 14049900820 Jazy Ball<br>Titles                 | 12/25/2012 5:57:03<br>AM(UTC+0)  | Sent |                                                                                                                                                                                            |
| 670 | To: 4044315449                                      | 12/25/2012 8:13:23<br>AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | And its about to snow                                                                                                                                                                      |
| 671 | To: 14042343381 007                                 | 12/25/2012 8:04:19<br>PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Merry christmas to u                                                                                                                                                                       |
| 672 | To: 14046955589                                     | 12/25/2012 8:04:44<br>PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Merry christmas                                                                                                                                                                            |
| 673 | To: 6789271738 Poon Poon<br>To: 678-927-1738        | 12/25/2012 8:28:48<br>PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Merry christmas                                                                                                                                                                            |
| 674 | To: 14042343381 007                                 | 12/25/2012 8:27:33<br>PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Did santa give u everything u want.                                                                                                                                                        |
| 675 | To: 6786515303 Tren Tren<br>To: 678-651-5303        | 12/25/2012 8:28:51<br>PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Merry christmas sexy lady                                                                                                                                                                  |
| 676 | To: 6785829109 Sis<br>To: 678-582-9109              | 12/25/2012 8:36:20<br>PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Merry christmas to u too                                                                                                                                                                   |
| 677 | To: 14042343381 007                                 | 12/25/2012 8:41:37<br>PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Aww sorry sir, I will give u some big black john boy booty if u can send me about 200\$ so I can move to the oklahoma city. Im hoping I can make money there and jus come back for the fac |
| 678 | To: 14042343381 007                                 | 12/25/2012 8:43:48<br>PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | And bbydd                                                                                                                                                                                  |
| 679 | To: 14042343381 007                                 | 12/25/2012 8:48:26<br>PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Ok I hope I make it out b4 it snows                                                                                                                                                        |
| 680 | To: 2052666751 Kb3<br>To: 205-266-6751              | 12/25/2012 8:51:38<br>PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Bro give me a call when u can. I could really use some help.                                                                                                                               |
| 681 | To: 4043688278 Kb4<br>To: 404-368-8278              | 12/25/2012 8:54:35<br>PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Merry christmas bro: I done got stuck in texas can u help me wit some change                                                                                                               |
| 682 | To: 14043688278 Kb4<br>To: 404-368-8278             | 12/25/2012 7:01:52<br>PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Enough to make it to another city bro. Oklahoma city is bout 3 hours from here bout 200 will get me there but I no u got a form so whatever u can land.                                    |
| 683 | To: 14043688278 Kb4<br>To: 404-368-8278             | 12/25/2012 7:11:27<br>PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Ok understand im trying to tell draw to c what he got can u put that wil.                                                                                                                  |
| 684 | To: 14042343381 007                                 | 12/25/2012 7:58:14<br>PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | I miss giving it to u                                                                                                                                                                      |
| 685 | To: 12052666751 Kb3<br>To: 205-266-6751             | 12/25/2012 9:13:56<br>PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Im trying to scrape up 200\$ to get outa texas Quincy say he got 30 and mama say she going to c what she can do                                                                            |
| 686 | To: 12052666751 Kb3<br>To: 205-266-6751             | 12/25/2012 9:15:11<br>PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | U no what ever u can land I will get back when I hit a lick                                                                                                                                |
| 687 | To: 7205698210 Nicole<br>To: +17205698210 Nicole    | 12/25/2012 9:28:44<br>PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Don't forget about me.. Should I ask gma to do it? but I asked u to.. I know u not gon leave me hangn all day like that..                                                                  |
| 688 | To: 7205698210 Nicole<br>To: +17205698210 Nicole    | 12/25/2012 9:30:43<br>PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | This is a very serious situation n I need u to b on that, for me plz. I gotta get my phone back on asap. And out this city!                                                                |
| 689 | To: 2052666751 Kb3<br>To: 205-266-6751              | 12/25/2012 9:31:37<br>PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Aite bro.preciate it.                                                                                                                                                                      |
| 690 | To: 4702579037 Sunshine<br>To: 14702579037 Sunshine | 12/25/2012 10:42:07<br>PM(UTC+0) | Sent | Did he pay u yet?                                                                                                                                                                          |
| 691 | To: 4702579037 Sunshine<br>To: 14702579037 Sunshine | 12/25/2012 10:42:07<br>PM(UTC+0) | Sent | Did he?                                                                                                                                                                                    |
| 692 | To: 4702579037 Sunshine<br>To: 14702579037 Sunshine | 12/25/2012 10:45:27<br>PM(UTC+0) | Sent | Tell him that u want to get started and put your money in your hand. Tell him u not tryn to get played either                                                                              |
| 693 | To: 4702579037 Sunshine<br>To: 14702579037 Sunshine | 12/25/2012 10:48:55<br>PM(UTC+0) | Sent | If he dont do that then lets go                                                                                                                                                            |
| 694 | To: 4702579037 Sunshine<br>To: 14702579037 Sunshine | 12/25/2012 10:48:12<br>PM(UTC+0) | Sent | Time is up at 5:17                                                                                                                                                                         |
| 695 | To: 4702579037 Sunshine<br>To: 14702579037 Sunshine | 12/25/2012 10:49:48<br>PM(UTC+0) | Sent | He seem like he on some slick shii so run out the door but naked if u have to win that money when u done                                                                                   |
| 696 | To: 14049900820 Jazy Ball<br>Titles                 | 12/25/2012 11:41:57<br>PM(UTC+0) | Sent | Ask tasha to put becca pics up for me                                                                                                                                                      |
| 697 | To: 7205698210 Nicole<br>To: +17205698210 Nicole    | 12/26/2012 12:36:25<br>AM(UTC+0) | Sent | Whats up.. He was on a run n his phone died.. Tell me something good plz.                                                                                                                  |
| 698 | To: 7205698210 Nicole<br>To: +17205698210 Nicole    | 12/26/2012 12:36:42<br>AM(UTC+0) | Sent | Callme                                                                                                                                                                                     |
| 699 | To: 4049748580                                      | 12/26/2012 1:15:15<br>AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Merry christmas who is this                                                                                                                                                                |
| 700 | To: 14046955589                                     | 12/26/2012 1:15:54<br>AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Who is this                                                                                                                                                                                |
| 701 | To: 4702579037 Sunshine<br>To: 14702579037 Sunshine | 12/26/2012 1:18:51<br>AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Yeah                                                                                                                                                                                       |
| 702 | To: 4702579037 Sunshine<br>To: 14702579037 Sunshine | 12/26/2012 1:19:02<br>AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Idk what she say.                                                                                                                                                                          |
| 703 | To: 4049748580                                      | 12/26/2012 1:25:21<br>AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | O merry merry christmas buntie.                                                                                                                                                            |
| 704 | To: 14702579037 Sunshine                            | 12/26/2012 5:10:28<br>AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Huh?                                                                                                                                                                                       |
| 705 | To: 14702579037 Sunshine                            | 12/26/2012 5:23:25<br>AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | This time u made me proud now get all they money for daddy                                                                                                                                 |
| 706 | To: 14702579037 Sunshine                            | 12/26/2012 5:32:18<br>AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Aite kool                                                                                                                                                                                  |

Appendix F

|      |                                    |                               |      |                                                                                                                                                                |     |
|------|------------------------------------|-------------------------------|------|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-----|
| 1246 | From: 14042343381 007              | 12/25/2012 4:02:24 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | Merry Christmas.                                                                                                                                               |     |
| 1247 | From: 14040955580                  | 12/25/2012 5:18:51 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | Merry Christmas.                                                                                                                                               |     |
| 1248 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 12/25/2012 6:27:21 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | Why are you slamming doors?                                                                                                                                    |     |
| 1249 | From: 0785929109 Sis               | 12/25/2012 6:35:46 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | Merry Christmas remember Jesus is the reason for the season. God bless you all!! Be safe!! Love yall!! Beautiful Black Queen                                   |     |
| 1250 | From: 14042343381 007              | 12/25/2012 6:38:15 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | NO. I was hoping for bbjbd but it wasn't under the tree.                                                                                                       |     |
| 1251 | From: 14042343381 007              | 12/25/2012 6:46:37 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | In Cleveland now - no where around to send \$\$ sorry. heading back to the A thurs                                                                             |     |
| 1252 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 12/25/2012 8:50:24 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | lon really care how you feeling but you and i need to talk                                                                                                     | Yes |
| 1253 | From: 14043688278 Kb4              | 12/25/2012 6:58:34 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | How much do you need?                                                                                                                                          |     |
| 1254 | From: 14043688278 Kb4              | 12/25/2012 7:03:24 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | Yea I don't have that. I'm broke from Christmas. The most i got is 20 or 30.                                                                                   |     |
| 1255 | From: 14042343381 007              | 12/25/2012 7:40:11 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | I miss that big thing                                                                                                                                          |     |
| 1256 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 12/25/2012 8:28:08 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | You want us to start now?                                                                                                                                      | Yes |
| 1257 | From: 12052888751 Kb3              | 12/25/2012 9:07:21 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | My bad Bro my phone went dead                                                                                                                                  |     |
| 1258 | From: 12052888751 Kb3              | 12/25/2012 9:08:37 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | At the in laws house now how can i help Bro                                                                                                                    |     |
| 1259 | From: 12052888751 Kb3              | 12/25/2012 9:25:38 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | I'mma see what we can do too                                                                                                                                   |     |
| 1260 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 12/25/2012 9:58:57 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | Fwd: 14232 dallas pkwy dallas tx 75254                                                                                                                         | Yes |
| 1261 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 12/25/2012 10:41:30 PM(UTC+0) | Read | Haven't had sex yet so <i>Wanted sex but she offered to</i>                                                                                                    |     |
| 1262 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 12/25/2012 10:41:42 PM(UTC+0) | Read | Got chie                                                                                                                                                       |     |
| 1263 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 12/25/2012 10:43:47 PM(UTC+0) | Read | Yes but wouldn't give it to me only set it on the dresser said i couldn't get it till i was done because he didn't want me to play him                         |     |
| 1264 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 12/25/2012 10:45:11 PM(UTC+0) | Read | <i>I didn't want to lose the money</i>                                                                                                                         |     |
| 1265 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 12/25/2012 10:47:04 PM(UTC+0) | Read | K                                                                                                                                                              |     |
| 1266 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 12/25/2012 10:47:58 PM(UTC+0) | Read | K                                                                                                                                                              |     |
| 1267 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 12/25/2012 10:49:22 PM(UTC+0) | Read | Ok daddy im heading it love you later                                                                                                                          |     |
| 1268 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 12/25/2012 10:50:25 PM(UTC+0) | Read | Ok                                                                                                                                                             |     |
| 1269 | From: 17205688210 Nicole           | 12/25/2012 11:28:21 PM(UTC+0) | Read | Hey                                                                                                                                                            |     |
| 1270 | From: 4049748580                   | 12/25/2012 12:35:45 AM(UTC+0) | Read | Merry christmas                                                                                                                                                |     |
| 1271 | From: 14049900820 Jazy Bell Tribos | 12/26/2012 12:55:21 AM(UTC+0) | Read | Y'all okay.                                                                                                                                                    |     |
| 1272 | From: 14049900820 Jazy Bell Tribos | 12/26/2012 12:55:23 AM(UTC+0) | Read | R YALL OKAY                                                                                                                                                    |     |
| 1273 | From: 14049900820 Jazy Bell Tribos | 12/26/2012 12:55:24 AM(UTC+0) | Read | Answer the phone or text plz we are worried                                                                                                                    |     |
| 1274 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 12/26/2012 1:16:34 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | Daddy.                                                                                                                                                         |     |
| 1275 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 12/26/2012 1:17:34 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | Why she be rooding all yo messages?                                                                                                                            |     |
| 1276 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 12/26/2012 1:22:20 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | (1/3) Cause jasmine just m8 the message you sent her and she was bko oh yeah i just seen that when i was looking in his phone i see when everybody text him he |     |
| 1277 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 12/26/2012 1:22:47 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | (2/3) lets me look i Then jasmine told me the other day tasha always look in yo phone when you put it down and read yo messages ion like that ish make me not  |     |
| 1278 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 12/26/2012 1:22:52 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | (3/3) even wanna text you                                                                                                                                      |     |
| 1278 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 12/26/2012 1:23:28 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | That's why i always think you trying to me cause sick \$hll she say                                                                                            |     |
| 1280 | From: 4049748580                   | 12/26/2012 1:23:34 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | Auntie joann                                                                                                                                                   |     |
| 1281 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 12/26/2012 5:08:47 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | Everybody wanted to turn around but i figured i was gonna be sick anyway so why not get sick and this time i actually acted like the bottom                    |     |
| 1282 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 12/26/2012 5:14:43 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | (1/2) Lot i said everybody was ready to give up but i ain't want to disappoint u anymore so i kept saying lets go we gonna find them then i ran us right into  |     |
| 1283 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 12/26/2012 5:15:11 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | (2/2) them and this time i look charge and acted like the bottom                                                                                               |     |

*Wanted sex but she offered to dance that's why they were going back and forth*

*This is a situation where I suspected she was prostituting against my advice and I wanted her to act like a lady and just walk out*

Appendix F

JK PHONE-00175

|     |                                                         |                                 |      |                                                                                                                                                                                                           |     |
|-----|---------------------------------------------------------|---------------------------------|------|-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-----|
| 631 | To: 4702579037 Sunshine<br>To: 14702579037 Sunshine     | 12/25/2012 1:02:20<br>AM(UTC+0) | Sent | Loi nobody in the office                                                                                                                                                                                  | Yes |
| 632 | To: 4702579037 Sunshine<br>To: 14702579037 Sunshine     | 12/25/2012 1:04:08<br>AM(UTC+0) | Sent | No                                                                                                                                                                                                        | Yes |
| 633 | To: 14042343381 007                                     | 12/25/2012 1:58:05<br>AM(UTC+0) | Sent | Hey my friend I miss u                                                                                                                                                                                    |     |
| 634 | To: 14042343381 007                                     | 12/25/2012 1:58:40<br>AM(UTC+0) | Sent | Merry christmas eve                                                                                                                                                                                       |     |
| 635 | To: 14042343381 007                                     | 12/25/2012 2:00:27<br>AM(UTC+0) | Sent | I've been trying to hold it together in texas sorry                                                                                                                                                       |     |
| 636 | To: 14042343381 007                                     | 12/25/2012 2:02:30<br>AM(UTC+0) | Sent | I was on my way to denver. jus got stuck                                                                                                                                                                  |     |
| 637 | To: 14042343381 007                                     | 12/25/2012 2:04:20<br>AM(UTC+0) | Sent | Dallas texas not the place to work                                                                                                                                                                        |     |
| 638 | To: 14042343381 007                                     | 12/25/2012 2:06:57<br>AM(UTC+0) | Sent | No I started in birmingham the girls worked there for 2days and from there I went to lafayette louisiana from there I came here                                                                           |     |
| 639 | To: 14042343381 007                                     | 12/25/2012 2:11:41<br>AM(UTC+0) | Sent | My plan was to work 2days in each state and make money on my way to denver because there were not many popular cities to work the girl going 25north thru oklahoma                                        |     |
| 640 | To: 14042343381 007                                     | 12/25/2012 2:17:50<br>AM(UTC+0) | Sent | I was driving the lac but the lac decided to break down in grand prairie texas.                                                                                                                           |     |
| 641 | To: 14042343381 007                                     | 12/25/2012 2:35:10<br>AM(UTC+0) | Sent | I think its the water pump this time                                                                                                                                                                      |     |
| 642 | To: 13038755052 Tasha<br>Montgomery<br>To: 303-875-5052 | 12/25/2012 2:39:37<br>AM(UTC+0) | Sent | I sais let me know when u ready                                                                                                                                                                           |     |
| 643 | To: 3038755052 Princess<br>To: 303-875-5052             | 12/25/2012 2:41:55<br>AM(UTC+0) | Sent | Make u what?                                                                                                                                                                                              |     |
| 644 | To: 3038755052 Princess<br>To: 303-875-5052             | 12/25/2012 2:43:33<br>AM(UTC+0) | Sent | Lmao                                                                                                                                                                                                      |     |
| 645 | To: 3038755052 Princess<br>To: 303-875-5052             | 12/25/2012 2:52:28<br>AM(UTC+0) | Sent | U working hard over there im not trying to rush u                                                                                                                                                         |     |
| 646 | To: 3038755052 Princess<br>To: 303-875-5052             | 12/25/2012 3:31:40<br>AM(UTC+0) | Sent | Drop that money out the window                                                                                                                                                                            |     |
| 647 | To: 3038755052 Princess<br>To: 303-875-5052             | 12/25/2012 3:31:57<br>AM(UTC+0) | Sent | Imu 2                                                                                                                                                                                                     |     |
| 648 | To: 3038755052 Princess<br>To: 303-875-5052             | 12/25/2012 3:33:14<br>AM(UTC+0) | Sent | Hr is 140 now                                                                                                                                                                                             |     |
| 649 | To: 4047693703 Crab<br>To: 404-769-3703                 | 12/25/2012 3:46:51<br>AM(UTC+0) | Sent | Thanks. same to u. I might need u to send my christmas present to me though                                                                                                                               |     |
| 650 | To: 14047693703 Crab<br>To: 404-769-3703                | 12/25/2012 3:48:08<br>AM(UTC+0) | Sent | Real shit im down bad out here                                                                                                                                                                            |     |
| 651 | To: 14046449082 D'zire 2<br>To: 404-644-9082            | 12/25/2012 4:21:11<br>AM(UTC+0) | Sent | I forgot y u gud                                                                                                                                                                                          |     |
| 652 | To: 14046449082 D'zire 2<br>To: 404-644-9082            | 12/25/2012 4:22:55<br>AM(UTC+0) | Sent | Need what? The hospital?                                                                                                                                                                                  |     |
| 653 | To: 4046449082 D'zire 2<br>To: 404-644-9082             | 12/25/2012 4:31:25<br>AM(UTC+0) | Sent | I want to bout 4 different hospitals that week. But I think I took u to south tullon im not sure tho R u ok                                                                                               |     |
| 654 | To: 3038755052 Princess<br>To: 303-875-5052             | 12/25/2012 4:35:11<br>AM(UTC+0) | Sent | Bae u up                                                                                                                                                                                                  |     |
| 655 | To: 4046449082 D'zire 2<br>To: 404-644-9082             | 12/25/2012 4:57:49<br>AM(UTC+0) | Sent | Dam bitch u cant answer genuine questions.                                                                                                                                                                |     |
| 656 | To: 4044315449                                          | 12/25/2012 5:15:07<br>AM(UTC+0) | Sent | Im very sorry for ruining the show last time we were at the studio plus I was very horny and that was a nice ass.                                                                                         |     |
| 657 | To: 4044315449                                          | 12/25/2012 5:18:17<br>AM(UTC+0) | Sent | If u can forgive me I really need your help. My cadillac over heated and im in dallas texas stuck. If u could help me get it fixed I can find someone to help me make up the money to get back to eliente |     |
| 658 | To: 4044315449                                          | 12/25/2012 5:19:20<br>AM(UTC+0) | Sent | And I will repay u buy bending over and taking the paddle and not messing up the party                                                                                                                    |     |
| 659 | To: 4044315449                                          | 12/25/2012 5:19:54<br>AM(UTC+0) | Sent | Please im only short 270 ←                                                                                                                                                                                |     |
| 660 | To: 14046449082 D'zire 2<br>To: 404-644-9082            | 12/25/2012 5:21:55<br>AM(UTC+0) | Sent | Gud for u!                                                                                                                                                                                                |     |
| 661 | To: 4047693703 Crab<br>To: 404-769-3703                 | 12/25/2012 5:23:04<br>AM(UTC+0) | Sent | Bro u think u can get that gift card for me                                                                                                                                                               |     |
| 662 | To: 4047693703 Crab<br>To: 404-769-3703                 | 12/25/2012 5:23:32<br>AM(UTC+0) | Sent | When u get off.                                                                                                                                                                                           |     |
| 663 | To: 4047693703 Crab<br>To: 404-769-3703                 | 12/25/2012 5:24:21<br>AM(UTC+0) | Sent | Ok thanks                                                                                                                                                                                                 |     |
| 664 | To: 14049900820 Jazy Bell<br>Titles                     | 12/25/2012 5:45:18<br>AM(UTC+0) | Sent | T                                                                                                                                                                                                         |     |
| 665 | To: 14049900820 Jazy Bell<br>Titles                     | 12/25/2012 5:45:48<br>AM(UTC+0) | Sent | To late to walk                                                                                                                                                                                           |     |
| 666 | To: 14049900820 Jazy Bell<br>Titles                     | 12/25/2012 5:45:48<br>AM(UTC+0) | Sent | To late to w=Q                                                                                                                                                                                            | Yes |
| 667 | To: 14049900820 Jazy Bell<br>Titles                     | 12/25/2012 5:47:52<br>AM(UTC+0) | Sent | I said I appreciate how yal hit the track for me today. Thanks alot                                                                                                                                       |     |
| 668 | To: 14049900820 Jazy Bell<br>Titles                     | 12/25/2012 5:57:03<br>AM(UTC+0) | Sent | I understand. Its cool                                                                                                                                                                                    |     |

Appendix F

|          |                                                         |                               |      |                                                                                                                                                                                                       |   |
|----------|---------------------------------------------------------|-------------------------------|------|-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|---|
| 707      | To: 14702579037 Sunshine                                | 12/26/2012 5:32:48 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Call me when u got to the door                                                                                                                                                                        |   |
| 708      | To: 12052668751 Kb3<br>To: 205-266-8751                 | 12/26/2012 3:47:52 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Yeah bro I jus filled up the tank. I got 20 left and im headed to jackson mississippi.                                                                                                                |   |
| 709      | To: 2052668751 Kb3<br>To: 205-266-8751                  | 12/26/2012 3:50:49 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | I hope I make it                                                                                                                                                                                      |   |
| 710      | To: 14042343381 007                                     | 12/26/2012 4:00:26 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Oaasam                                                                                                                                                                                                |   |
| 711      | To: 14042343381 007                                     | 12/26/2012 4:02:44 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Lol im on my way to jackson mississippi hopefully I will c u n all                                                                                                                                    |   |
| 712      | To: 2052668751 Kb3<br>To: 205-266-8751                  | 12/26/2012 5:01:29 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Can u spare 50 til I can come up dont worry bout the 200 im just tryn to get enough to get home                                                                                                       | ← |
| 713      | To: 4043688278 Kb4<br>To: 404-368-8278                  | 12/26/2012 5:17:44 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Bro u can western union that 30                                                                                                                                                                       | ← |
| 714      | To: 4047488135 Rekeisha<br>To: 404-748-8135             | 12/26/2012 7:54:08 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Im not your baby. I dont even want u no more                                                                                                                                                          |   |
| 715      | To: 12052668751 Kb3<br>To: 205-266-8751                 | 12/26/2012 9:10:14 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Arie bro I got u back bro.                                                                                                                                                                            |   |
| 716      | To: 14049900820 Jazy Ball<br>Titles                     | 12/26/2012 10:43:26 PM(UTC+0) | Sent | Let jasmine get the phone                                                                                                                                                                             |   |
| 717      | To: 12052668751 Kb3<br>To: 205-266-8751                 | 12/26/2012 11:05:10 PM(UTC+0) | Sent | Yeah bro almost to jackson                                                                                                                                                                            |   |
| 1301 718 | To: 4702579037 Sunshine<br>To: 14702579037 Sunshine     | 12/27/2012 2:42:18 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Kool                                                                                                                                                                                                  |   |
| 719      | To: 13184460907 GG                                      | 12/27/2012 3:56:56 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Yea bouncy butt. It did. What I tell u bout that bossy. How far r u from shreveport                                                                                                                   |   |
| 720      | To: 13184460907 GG                                      | 12/27/2012 4:08:12 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Aww po baby.                                                                                                                                                                                          |   |
| 721      | To: 13184460907 GG                                      | 12/27/2012 4:37:10 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Yeah I miss u too. Im in shreveport                                                                                                                                                                   |   |
| 722      | To: 13184460907 GG                                      | 12/27/2012 5:01:29 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Louisiana                                                                                                                                                                                             |   |
| 723      | To: 13184460907 GG                                      | 12/27/2012 5:05:42 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Lol those was some gud times                                                                                                                                                                          |   |
| 724      | To: 13184460907 GG                                      | 12/27/2012 7:24:38 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Yeah really we gots to do that again                                                                                                                                                                  |   |
| 725      | To: 13184460907 GG                                      | 12/27/2012 7:24:49 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Assp                                                                                                                                                                                                  |   |
| 726      | To: 17205688210 Nicole<br>To: +17205688210 Nicole       | 12/27/2012 7:47:27 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Hoy. U can call your sister phone. Its on                                                                                                                                                             |   |
| 727      | To: 17272372273                                         | 12/27/2012 7:47:46 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Ok I will save it                                                                                                                                                                                     |   |
| 728      | To: 17272372273<br>To: 17272372273                      | 12/27/2012 7:53:15 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Yeah I gave em your number                                                                                                                                                                            |   |
| 729      | To: 17272372273                                         | 12/27/2012 8:27:48 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Ok gots get more minutes                                                                                                                                                                              |   |
| 730      | To: 17272372273                                         | 12/27/2012 8:47:24 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | I got a green dot                                                                                                                                                                                     |   |
| 731      | To: 3378021191<br>To: 337-802-1191                      | 12/27/2012 9:19:44 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | I think yo friend lost a phone. My girls found it and im trying to return it. I on want nothing for it.                                                                                               |   |
| 1374 732 | To: 4702579037 Sunshine<br>To: 14702579037 Sunshine     | 12/27/2012 9:34:34 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Lol                                                                                                                                                                                                   |   |
| 733      | To: 3038755052 Princess<br>To: 303-875-5052             | 12/27/2012 9:42:22 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | On the date                                                                                                                                                                                           |   |
| 734      | To: 13638755052 Tasha<br>Montgomery<br>To: 303-875-5052 | 12/27/2012 10:07:38 PM(UTC+0) | Sent | I did have to tell u that. Smart ass ask me what to do then wana act like a know it all                                                                                                               |   |
| 735      | To: 3038755052 Princess<br>To: 303-875-5052             | 12/27/2012 11:35:23 PM(UTC+0) | Sent | Ok                                                                                                                                                                                                    |   |
| 736      | To: 13038755052 Tasha<br>Montgomery<br>To: 303-875-5052 | 12/28/2012 12:48:56 AM(UTC+0) | Sent | Go tell the front desk lady                                                                                                                                                                           |   |
| 737      | To: 3378021191<br>To: 337-802-1191                      | 12/28/2012 3:27:56 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Yeah I called but she didnt show. If u speak to her tell her I found the weed and im heading back to atlanta at 9am                                                                                   |   |
| 738      | To: 6785929109 Sis<br>To: 678-592-9109                  | 12/28/2012 6:12:33 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Louisiana                                                                                                                                                                                             |   |
| 739      | To: 6785929109 Sis<br>To: 678-592-9109                  | 12/28/2012 6:41:23 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | I dont know how long he got but he been there like 3 weeks.                                                                                                                                           |   |
| 740      | To: 6785929109 Sis<br>To: 678-592-9109                  | 12/28/2012 6:54:40 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Oh im not sure. My heating core went out on mu cadillac in texas. And the fuel pump went out on the truck yesterday so im trying get the truck fixed so I can go back texas and tow my car to atlanta | ← |
| 741      | To: 6785929109 Sis<br>To: 678-592-9109                  | 12/28/2012 7:07:53 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Lol u think o_O                                                                                                                                                                                       |   |
| 742      | To: 3038755052 Princess<br>To: 303-875-5052             | 12/28/2012 7:46:46 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Yes                                                                                                                                                                                                   |   |
| 743      | To: 6786004438 Phyre wood<br>Phyre<br>To: 678-600-4438  | 12/28/2012 7:50:02 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Arie hommie n shreveport                                                                                                                                                                              |   |

Appendix F

- Note - JK Phone 00219  
is page one of Appendix F 219

JK PHONE-00219

|      |                                                     |                             |      |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         |
|------|-----------------------------------------------------|-----------------------------|------|---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|
| 1036 | To: 14042343381 007                                 | 1/4/2013 7:12:24 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Pep boys had the car the entire time I have been here and refuses to put the makeshift tire on because they say do not want to be liable if it did not hold up. But I found a guy                                                                                                                                                                       |
| 1037 | To: 14042343381 007                                 | 1/4/2013 7:13:21 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | And the lac stopped running in Dallas Texas                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             |
| 1038 | To: 14042343381 007                                 | 1/4/2013 7:14:50 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | I met a guy in Texas that will make the lac driveable                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   |
| 1039 | To: 14042343381 007                                 | 1/4/2013 7:18:32 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | The only problem with the lac is its heating core. The heating core is making the car run hot.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          |
| 1040 | To: 14042343381 007                                 | 1/4/2013 7:23:55 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | I want some sun. Tell me that u will help me with gas if I spend my last on getting these repairs. The girls are finding better situations because it looks like everything is falling apart. I got one hoe now and I came with three. I will marry u if u say yes!                                                                                     |
| 1041 | To: 14042343381 007                                 | 1/4/2013 7:35:29 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Im asking if u can send me \$70 dollars to rent a tow trailer so that I can tow the lac home and 160 for gas please.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    |
| 1042 | To: 14042343381 007                                 | 1/4/2013 7:37:28 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | The white girl chose another pimp in a Bentley Coupe. And the other girl went back to Jacksonville because she was not getting any calls in Texas or Louisiana                                                                                                                                                                                          |
| 1043 | To: 14042343381 007                                 | 1/4/2013 7:38:37 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | U deserve whatever u want                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               |
| 1044 | To: 14042343381 007                                 | 1/4/2013 7:39:23 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | [-(-)]                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  |
| 1045 | To: 14042343381 007                                 | 1/4/2013 7:42:31 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Lol ur right                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            |
| 1046 | To: 14042343381 007                                 | 1/4/2013 7:50:41 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Ok thanks for being there. can I call at 9am                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            |
| 1047 | To: 14042343381 007                                 | 1/4/2013 7:52:18 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Or when will u be done getting built?                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   |
| 1048 | To: 14042343381 007                                 | 1/4/2013 7:55:58 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Coo                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     |
| 1049 | To: 14042343381 007                                 | 1/4/2013 7:55:58 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         |
| 1050 | To: 14702579037 Sunshine                            | 1/4/2013 7:59:55 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Yes please. P.189                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       |
| 1051 | To: 14702579037 Sunshine                            | 1/4/2013 8:02:58 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Travelodge                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              |
| 1052 | To: 14702579037 Sunshine                            | 1/4/2013 8:04:51 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Sure                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    |
| 1053 | To: 14702579037 Sunshine                            | 1/4/2013 8:21:31 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Fuck u mean I want my money                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             |
| 1054 | To: 14702579037 Sunshine                            | 1/4/2013 8:26:01 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Sound like u realize u made another dumb move                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           |
| 1055 | To: 14702579037 Sunshine                            | 1/4/2013 8:02:57 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Ok jus so u no u always going to be a bitch ho. And u know who is the realest. Dumb shit is u the only one that thought it was a game. I been holding shut down u jus to outa pocket to do yo job. So that dont make me bad. Jus make u hard headed.                                                                                                    |
| 1056 | To: 4702579037 Sunshine<br>To: 14702579037 Sunshine | 1/4/2013 9:10:09 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | And I never called yo lame ass disloyal. I said I didnt trust u an if u fuckin with me sh had to do was answer the phone ignore all the other shit and I said if u cant do that u can leave when u ready                                                                                                                                                |
| 1057 | To: 4702579037 Sunshine<br>To: 14702579037 Sunshine | 1/4/2013 9:17:41 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | I said never tried to keep u around shut ho. I told u what I needed and gave u a chance to b.i. Never played u. u played yosef thinking u can pimp. U dont got a keep tellin me u not my hoe cuz ion want u. All I want is my money or your fuck fucked up. I rather have a ho that snitch than a hoe that got 100 boyfriends                           |
| 1058 | To: 4702579037 Sunshine<br>To: 14702579037 Sunshine | 1/4/2013 9 21:29 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Oh yeah the reason I always wear a condom is cuz I fucked u once raw and I been burning every since cant even piss cuz yo nasty ass. You dont got no home training u just a no rubber using shut. I saved u ho. I showed u some game. ima take care of my shit. But u is not be boss nothing. U is a rape victim that cant do shit about it but like d. |
| 1059 | To: 4702579037 Sunshine<br>To: 14702579037 Sunshine | 1/4/2013 9 23:02 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Tried to boss yo lame ass up but all u wana do is fuck niggas that sound sexy. I see thru u fake bitch and bi u change u aint never going to b mine                                                                                                                                                                                                     |
| 1060 | To: 14702579037 Sunshine                            | 1/4/2013 9:30:00 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | I didnt throw shit in yo face. I told you your future. Niggas is going to take yo pussy and pass u around to they dogs cuz u cant defend yosef. I fuckin showed u all the love I had                                                                                                                                                                    |
| 1061 | To: 4702579037 Sunshine<br>To: 14702579037 Sunshine | 1/4/2013 9:48:48 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | U know how I felt so stop lying to yourself. U was to special to me and I always gave u a pass thats y u was always outa pocket. I was to nice. Soon as I get serious u wana get scared. Smh                                                                                                                                                            |
| 1062 | To: 4702579037 Sunshine<br>To: 14702579037 Sunshine | 1/4/2013 9:51:50 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | So do u wana keep letting these niggas fuck u and lock u out or is u riding with me                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     |
| 1063 | To: 4702579037 Sunshine<br>To: 14702579037 Sunshine | 1/4/2013 10:16:43 PM(UTC+0) | Sent | Im asking cuz im bouta catch the bus to Texas and get my car. And I would respect u more if u got my money back. If I want to come back to shropton or back to Birmingham I will take u                                                                                                                                                                 |
| 1064 | To: 14702579037 Sunshine                            | 1/4/2013 10:38:57 PM(UTC+0) | Sent | Read the text again dont play. Jus tell me how u wana act bout this. If u women enough to pay me back I will take u where ever u want to go. Birmingham Louisiana it dont matter.                                                                                                                                                                       |
| 1065 | To: 14702579037 Sunshine                            | 1/4/2013 10:39:45 PM(UTC+0) | Sent | No they wont                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            |
| 1066 | To: 14702579037 Sunshine                            | 1/4/2013 10:43:25 PM(UTC+0) | Sent | Not smart for me to fuck yo face up if you showing me u sorry.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          |
| 1067 | To: 4702579037 Sunshine<br>To: 14702579037 Sunshine | 1/4/2013 10:49:01 PM(UTC+0) | Sent | Deep down inside u know we have some real shit and u confused. All im saying is u can easily make us work if u got this money back I will believe u didnt mean to get me locked up. If u leave me hanging I will have to get something for that loss                                                                                                    |
| 1068 | To: 4702579037 Sunshine<br>To: 14702579037 Sunshine | 1/4/2013 10:50:44 PM(UTC+0) | Sent | I want to do this right                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 |
| 1069 | To: 4702579037 Sunshine<br>To: 14702579037 Sunshine | 1/4/2013 10:51:36 PM(UTC+0) | Sent | I know u confused about how im takn the mistake u mad                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   |
| 1070 | To: 4702579037 Sunshine<br>To: 14702579037 Sunshine | 1/4/2013 10:52:19 PM(UTC+0) | Sent | I honestly want to forgive                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              |
| 1071 | To: 4702579037 Sunshine<br>To: 14702579037 Sunshine | 1/4/2013 10:58:00 PM(UTC+0) | Sent | U need to let me know how we going to play it. by the time I got my car back here.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      |
| 1072 | To: 4702579037 Sunshine<br>To: 14702579037 Sunshine | 1/4/2013 10:58:43 PM(UTC+0) | Sent | Im trying to give u a chance so let me know something cuz I can come get u                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              |

Appendix F

|     |                                           |                               |      |                                                                                                                                                                                 |     |
|-----|-------------------------------------------|-------------------------------|------|---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-----|
| 344 | From: 4042076362 D'zire                   | 11/29/2012 1:01:58 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | 2min is up                                                                                                                                                                      |     |
| 345 | From: 16782627471 Cell bama Baby Phone GA | 11/29/2012 2:32:29 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | (3/5) to the point i can't be down for someone who not even really down for me to wG +131 4044029570: Q Q 0.0.0.0.13541534151661 called u@                                      | Yes |
| 346 | From: 14044029570 Back Up Cell Phone GA   | 11/29/2012 2:32:33 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | When u called me                                                                                                                                                                |     |
| 347 | From: 14044029570 Back Up Cell Phone GA   | 11/29/2012 2:32:37 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | We already have cigars from earlier                                                                                                                                             |     |
| 348 | From: 14044029570 Back Up Cell Phone GA   | 11/29/2012 2:32:37 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | Wa I                                                                                                                                                                            | Yes |
| 349 | From: 14044029570 Back Up Cell Phone GA   | 11/29/2012 4:56:57 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | Nevermind...                                                                                                                                                                    |     |
| 350 | From: 13038755052 Tasha Montgomery        | 11/29/2012 8:06:11 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | Daddy.. is everything ok? Its really foggy out. Plz b careful!                                                                                                                  | Yes |
| 351 | From: 13038755052 Tasha Montgomery        | 11/29/2012 8:06:11 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | Daddy.. is e P## 14044029570 Q J C C Have                                                                                                                                       | Yes |
| 352 | From: 14044029570 Back Up Cell Phone GA   | 11/29/2012 8:33:58 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | I just made 117 for 30mins                                                                                                                                                      |     |
| 353 | From: 13038755052 Tasha Montgomery        | 11/29/2012 8:43:39 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | NEED TO TALK to u! Rebecca is waiting for u!                                                                                                                                    | Yes |
| 354 | From: 13038755052 Tasha Montgomery        | 11/29/2012 11:59:00 AM(UTC+0) | Read | I'm not done wit what I need to say! I know u need some sleep so let me know when we can talk!                                                                                  | Yes |
| 355 | From: 4042076362 D'zire                   | 11/29/2012 3:12:26 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | Can I go to sleep. nothing came in                                                                                                                                              |     |
| 356 | From: 16789141359 Bag Dra                 | 11/29/2012 4:07:13 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | <a href="https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=yBikY0FWvDk&amp;feature=youtu.be&amp;data_player">https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=yBikY0FWvDk&amp;feature=youtu.be&amp;data_player</a> |     |
| 357 | From: 4047488135 Rekeisha                 | 11/29/2012 4:39:00 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | Hey                                                                                                                                                                             |     |
| 358 | From: 13038755052 Tasha Montgomery        | 11/29/2012 5:45:58 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | Didn't have enough for detergent. Omw                                                                                                                                           |     |
| 359 | From: 4042076362 D'zire                   | 11/29/2012 8:36:53 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | Theres a big game in alabama somoney will be coming in this weekend                                                                                                             |     |
| 360 | From: 4042076362 D'zire                   | 11/29/2012 8:36:53 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | Theres a big game in alabama somoney wil                                                                                                                                        | Yes |
| 361 | From: 7709128486 Tawanna                  | 11/30/2012 1:39:28 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | Sorry to bother u. U cross my spirit thought I at least check on u. Stay up! Holla --"Blessed"--                                                                                |     |
| 362 | From: 13184460907 GG                      | 11/30/2012 1:50:34 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | Miss you! --"THAT'S JUS HOW IM FEELIN--"                                                                                                                                        |     |
| 363 | From: 7709128486 Tawanna                  | 11/30/2012 1:52:01 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | Nothing buddy --"Blessed"--                                                                                                                                                     |     |
| 364 | From: 7709128486 Tawanna                  | 11/30/2012 1:53:23 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | Just thought of ya! be good --"Blessed"--                                                                                                                                       |     |
| 365 | From: 7709128486 Tawanna                  | 11/30/2012 1:54:40 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | An give me my dam money! Lot for real. Need it for my phone bill. --"Blessed"--                                                                                                 |     |
| 366 | From: 13184460907 GG                      | 11/30/2012 1:58:45 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | I said I miss you an its time to make up --"THAT'S JUS HOW IM FEELIN--"                                                                                                         |     |
| 367 | From: 7709128486 Tawanna                  | 11/30/2012 1:59:21 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | I am going to bed at 10 so make arrangements before then u still got an hour an 2 min --"Blessed"--                                                                             |     |
| 368 | From: 7709128486 Tawanna                  | 11/30/2012 2:05:45 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | U aint never here when u suppose to be! I AM HAVING DAJAVU, anyway u do the math. I am serious. I've never ask u for nothing back. When will u be here --"Blessed"--            |     |
| 369 | From: 13184460907 GG                      | 11/30/2012 2:08:11 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | Wex If it was there we would smash but since im in I we need to talk about it --"THAT'S JUS HOW IM FEELIN--"                                                                    |     |
| 370 | From: 7709128486 Tawanna                  | 11/30/2012 2:09:15 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | U cant talk? --"Blessed"--                                                                                                                                                      |     |
| 371 | From: 7709128486 Tawanna                  | 11/30/2012 2:17:00 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | Nvm man! U good fucking with u. I know how hoes can keep u occupied Take care. I'll probably holla back mid next year. --"Blessed"--                                            |     |
| 372 | From: 4042076362 D'zire                   | 11/30/2012 2:25:45 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | Im tired of you!                                                                                                                                                                |     |
| 373 | From: 7709128486 Tawanna                  | 11/30/2012 2:45:25 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | Lier u said u was in the country next door. Make your mind up. U here or not. I need 100 --"Blessed"--                                                                          |     |
| 374 | From: 7709128486 Tawanna                  | 11/30/2012 2:52:31 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | If u was here in the A then u should of been here before my bedtime. I already told u an ask u that. So forget it. U not dependable gnille --"Blessed"--                        |     |
| 375 | From: 16782627471 Cell bama Baby Phone GA | 11/30/2012 3:01:58 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | (1/4) Daddy be careful!! I don't want nothing to happen to you i care to much about you now and would put myself out on the line for you, just don't ever hide                  | Yes |
| 376 | From: 16782627471 Cell bama Baby Phone GA | 11/30/2012 3:02:17 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | (2/4) anything from me! I wanna be that lady you keep asking for because i feel like i can be that for you I just need you to show me im truly what you want                    | Yes |
| 377 | From: 16782627471 Cell bama Baby Phone GA | 11/30/2012 3:02:19 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | (3/4) to be yo leading lady I We gonna make it to the top but babe that extra got to go you to nice to ha after she dogged you and you know as yo leading lady                  | Yes |
| 378 | From: 16782627471 Cell bama Baby Phone GA | 11/30/2012 3:02:55 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | (4/4) ima stay on you about it till you done                                                                                                                                    | Yes |

Appendix F

JK PHONE-00151

|     |                                           |                              |      |                                                                                                                                                                          |     |
|-----|-------------------------------------------|------------------------------|------|--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-----|
| 501 | From: 4047488135 Rekeisha                 | 12/4/2012 5:31:05 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | It's not even long baby.                                                                                                                                                 |     |
| 502 | From: 14047693703 Crab                    | 12/4/2012 5:54:33 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | Who has ur car                                                                                                                                                           |     |
| 503 | From: 13038755052 Tasha Montgomery        | 12/4/2012 7:52:00 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | -)                                                                                                                                                                       | Yes |
| 504 | From: 13038755052 Tasha Montgomery        | 12/4/2012 2:41:15 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | I love u too! Grt!                                                                                                                                                       | Yes |
| 505 | From: 14044029570 Back Up Cell Phone GA   | 12/4/2012 2:57:19 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | Morning                                                                                                                                                                  |     |
| 506 | From: 13038755052 Tasha Montgomery        | 12/4/2012 3:48:30 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | Imu!                                                                                                                                                                     | Yes |
| 507 | From: 13038755052 Tasha Montgomery        | 12/4/2012 3:49:01 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | -)                                                                                                                                                                       | Yes |
| 508 | From: 14042343381 007                     | 12/4/2012 4:04:28 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | U tell me.                                                                                                                                                               |     |
| 509 | From: 14042343381 007                     | 12/4/2012 4:14:05 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | Aight. Not going to b noon. I'll let u when I'm leaving. Bout 1230 or                                                                                                    |     |
| 510 | From: 14042343381 007                     | 12/4/2012 4:14:05 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | Aight. Not going to b noon. I'll let u when I'm leaving. Bout 1230 or                                                                                                    | Yes |
| 511 | From: 13038755052 Tasha Montgomery        | 12/4/2012 6:01:15 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | 1335 Avalon dr 30044 lawrenceville GA :                                                                                                                                  | Yes |
| 512 | From: 14042343381 007                     | 12/4/2012 6:10:59 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | Heading to Lville. mail now                                                                                                                                              |     |
| 513 | From: 14042343381 007                     | 12/4/2012 6:44:58 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | Here where u                                                                                                                                                             |     |
| 514 | From: 14044029570 Back Up Cell Phone GA   | 12/4/2012 6:47:11 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | And daddy I need some more soap                                                                                                                                          |     |
| 515 | From: 13038755052 Tasha Montgomery        | 12/4/2012 6:51:31 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | U posted my ad but me b on the easiside! Ok! Whatever                                                                                                                    | Yes |
| 516 | From: 14044029570 Back Up Cell Phone GA   | 12/4/2012 7:00:50 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | Okay daddy.                                                                                                                                                              |     |
| 517 | From: 14044459502 Empress                 | 12/4/2012 7:58:34 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | Who? Who r u looking for?                                                                                                                                                |     |
| 518 | From: 14044459502 Empress                 | 12/4/2012 7:58:30 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | What? you got the wrong number                                                                                                                                           |     |
| 519 | From: 14044459502 Empress                 | 12/4/2012 8:00:47 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | U got the wrong number!                                                                                                                                                  |     |
| 520 | From: 14044459502 Empress                 | 12/4/2012 8:02:14 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | Who is this? How did u get my number?                                                                                                                                    |     |
| 521 | From: 14044459502 Empress                 | 12/4/2012 8:07:01 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | What? No I havent gave it to anyone.                                                                                                                                     |     |
| 522 | From: 16782627471 Cell bama Baby Phone GA | 12/4/2012 10:33:58 PM(UTC+0) | Read | ♦o                                                                                                                                                                       |     |
| 523 | From: 16782627471 Cell bama Baby Phone GA | 12/4/2012 10:33:58 PM(UTC+0) | Read | Daddy.                                                                                                                                                                   | Yes |
| 524 | From: 4047488135 Rekeisha                 | 12/5/2012 1:32:18 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | Hey baby.                                                                                                                                                                |     |
| 525 | From: 4047488135 Rekeisha                 | 12/5/2012 1:34:17 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | You never hid me up.                                                                                                                                                     |     |
| 526 | From: 13038755052 Tasha Montgomery        | 12/5/2012 1:53:45 AM(UTC+0)  | Read |                                                                                                                                                                          | Yes |
| 527 | From: 13038755052 Tasha Montgomery        | 12/5/2012 1:53:45 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | DoIn ♦                                                                                                                                                                   | Yes |
| 528 | From: 3215943448                          | 12/5/2012 2:45:42 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | Bro if u stop by wendys can u grab me a nugget and a fry?                                                                                                                |     |
| 529 | From: 13184460907 GG                      | 12/5/2012 6:09:13 AM(UTC+0)  | Read |                                                                                                                                                                          |     |
| 530 | From: 16782627471 Cell bama Baby Phone GA | 12/5/2012 6:58:41 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | THAT SHYT TRAGI<br>16782627471 cell bama Baby Phone GA : 16782627471, if you do not need that 013 ♦ (1/2) ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ YIM ♦ ♦ ♦ but why do i gave to professional pictures | Yes |
| 531 | From: 16782627471 Cell bama Baby Phone GA | 12/5/2012 6:58:12 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | (2/2) on bout yo business and i need my charger                                                                                                                          | Yes |
| 532 | From: 13038755052 Tasha Montgomery        | 12/5/2012 7:23:27 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | -)                                                                                                                                                                       | Yes |
| 533 | From: 13038755052 Tasha Montgomery        | 12/5/2012 7:27:28 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | U still got weed? I still got a blunt :-)                                                                                                                                | Yes |
| 534 | From: 14044029570 Back Up Cell Phone GA   | 12/5/2012 8:19:52 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | 8266 Phillips lake way Lithonia ga 30058                                                                                                                                 |     |
| 535 | From: 14044029570 Back Up Cell Phone GA   | 12/5/2012 8:21:49 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | 30mins for 100                                                                                                                                                           |     |
| 536 | From: 13038755052 Tasha Montgomery        | 12/5/2012 7:41:38 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | I'm going back to sleep!                                                                                                                                                 |     |
| 537 | From: 16782627471 Cell bama Baby Phone GA | 12/5/2012 8:24:06 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | Ok but why do i gave to professional pictures                                                                                                                            | Yes |
| 538 | From: 4047488135 Rekeisha                 | 12/5/2012 8:48:50 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | My bad. I was doing some school work.                                                                                                                                    |     |
| 539 | From: 13184460907 GG                      | 12/5/2012 9:59:10 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | U do wat u do u been doin it long b4 me I jus dnt like the way u be tryna put me out there like that all the time that's why I be taken shyt cuz it hurts my fe          |     |
| 540 | From: 13184460907 GG                      | 12/5/2012 10:04:13 PM(UTC+0) | Read | lets be that that's all you think of me is me bein hoe an dats shyt blows me I jus wanna be cool like we was b4 all the pimp shyt                                        |     |
| 541 | From: 13184460907 GG                      | 12/5/2012 10:04:16 PM(UTC+0) | Read | THAT SHYT TRAGI<br>C-                                                                                                                                                    |     |
| 542 | From: 13184460907 GG                      | 12/5/2012 10:11:30 PM(UTC+0) | Read | I love you too! I jus dnt wanna be one of your ho's. I want u to respect the women that I've become                                                                      |     |
|     |                                           |                              |      | THAT SHYT TRAGI                                                                                                                                                          |     |

Appendix F

JK PHONE-00155

|     |                                               |                             |      |                                                                                                                                                                                          |
|-----|-----------------------------------------------|-----------------------------|------|------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|
| 689 | From: 14049900820 Jazy Bell<br>Titties        | 12/7/2012 1:01:56 PM(UTC+0) | Read | Reminder...we can put my phone before 4 today.                                                                                                                                           |
| 690 | From: 14047893703 Crib                        | 12/7/2012 1:19:22 PM(UTC+0) | Read | U coolying ass nigga.                                                                                                                                                                    |
| 691 | From: 13038755052 Tasha<br>Montgomery         | 12/7/2012 4:29:31 PM(UTC+0) | Read | Let me know when ur really here k                                                                                                                                                        |
| 692 | From: 16782627471 Cell barna<br>Baby Phone GA | 12/7/2012 5:38:20 PM(UTC+0) | Read | Damn you just decided to leave me didn't it                                                                                                                                              |
| 693 | From: 16782627471 Cell barna<br>Baby Phone GA | 12/7/2012 5:42:35 PM(UTC+0) | Read | Yeah im up and i ment damn you wake up and left didn't say nunt                                                                                                                          |
| 694 | From: 16782627471 Cell barna<br>Baby Phone GA | 12/7/2012 5:45:34 PM(UTC+0) | Read | I mean damn you could have said im leaving!                                                                                                                                              |
| 695 | From: 16782627471 Cell barna<br>Baby Phone GA | 12/7/2012 5:50:25 PM(UTC+0) | Read | Well least i know why you actually moved me here and want put me<br>in macon smh ok then boss you go pimp have a good day shawty                                                         |
| 696 | From: 16782627471 Cell barna<br>Baby Phone GA | 12/7/2012 5:57:19 PM(UTC+0) | Read | (1/3) I listened to every word i been asking to go to macon this<br>whole week maybe if that's where you sent me where i know where<br>i can get my money than maybe <del>my money</del> |
| 697 | From: 16782627471 Cell barna<br>Baby Phone GA | 12/7/2012 5:58:22 PM(UTC+0) | Read | (2/3) you wouldn't be in such a bad mood but you wanna keep<br>putting me places closer than which isn't getting anywhere if you<br>wanna be around them then let me                     |
| 698 | From: 16782627471 Cell barna<br>Baby Phone GA | 12/7/2012 5:58:28 PM(UTC+0) | Read | (3/3) do wif you brought me here to do and stop wasting our time                                                                                                                         |
| 699 | From: 16782627471 Cell barna<br>Baby Phone GA | 12/7/2012 6:00:23 PM(UTC+0) | Read | (1/3) And you keep thinking its this jealousy type shit and it ain't its<br>the fact you got me in places where you know i shouldn't be!! Put<br>me where you know                       |
| 700 | From: 16782627471 Cell barna<br>Baby Phone GA | 12/7/2012 6:00:59 PM(UTC+0) | Read | (2/3) im do fine like i said quit wasting both our teams and my<br>potential if your gonna just keep putting me where you know people<br>play on the phone then                          |
| 701 | From: 16782627471 Cell barna<br>Baby Phone GA | 12/7/2012 6:01:01 PM(UTC+0) | Read | (3/3) your just gonna keep being called a lazy pimp because you m8<br>making me get this money cause you put me somewhere where<br>done irritated me                                     |
| 702 | From: 16782627471 Cell barna<br>Baby Phone GA | 12/7/2012 6:02:17 PM(UTC+0) | Read | is that all you can say                                                                                                                                                                  |
| 703 | From: 16782627471 Cell barna<br>Baby Phone GA | 12/7/2012 6:05:23 PM(UTC+0) | Read | (1/2) And the things is i ain't even jealous anymore cause you a<br>pimp and you gonna do wif you wanna do i just want anybody to<br>keep wasting my time you know i                     |
| 704 | From: 16782627471 Cell barna<br>Baby Phone GA | 12/7/2012 6:05:52 PM(UTC+0) | Read | (2/2) can get this money but you not putting me in the situation i<br>need to be in to get where i need to be                                                                            |
| 705 | From: 16782627471 Cell barna<br>Baby Phone GA | 12/7/2012 6:08:43 PM(UTC+0) | Read | (1/3) You don't get it do honestly think im scared im trying to prove a<br>point to you everything that has happen to me i generally wouldn't<br>even tell my pimp                       |
| 706 | From: 16782627471 Cell barna<br>Baby Phone GA | 12/7/2012 6:10:11 PM(UTC+0) | Read | (2/3) because im not scared its to show yo dumb ass that you<br>putting me places where i don't belong i ain't come up here to put<br>my life at risk i came up to                       |
| 707 | From: 16782627471 Cell barna<br>Baby Phone GA | 12/7/2012 6:10:13 PM(UTC+0) | Read | (3/3) got this money for you                                                                                                                                                             |
| 708 | From: 16782627471 Cell barna<br>Baby Phone GA | 12/7/2012 6:12:58 PM(UTC+0) | Read | i been doing since i was 14 i seen people shot in front of me i am far<br>from scary, but you don't seem to see what i do.                                                               |
| 709 | From: 16782627471 Cell barna<br>Baby Phone GA | 12/7/2012 6:18:44 PM(UTC+0) | Read | (1/2) I know who im talking to ill since you think im not trying to get<br>this money then why am i bothering answering the phone since<br>that's how you really feel                    |
| 710 | From: 16782627471 Cell barna<br>Baby Phone GA | 12/7/2012 6:19:32 PM(UTC+0) | Read | (2/2) since tasha and jasmine making sure to get you this money<br>stay with them                                                                                                        |
| 711 | From: 16782627471 Cell barna<br>Baby Phone GA | 12/7/2012 6:23:18 PM(UTC+0) | Read | How about i say fuk it because i see whats up now                                                                                                                                        |
| 712 | From: 16782627471 Cell barna<br>Baby Phone GA | 12/7/2012 6:27:11 PM(UTC+0) | Read | This is just all a big ass game to you you got into my read made me<br>feel like the bottom bitch then turn back to tasha this ain't the game i<br>fell in love with                     |
| 713 | From: 16782627471 Cell barna<br>Baby Phone GA | 12/7/2012 6:30:45 PM(UTC+0) | Read | (1/2) i appreciate everything you done showed me or said to me<br>and i am not blind im tired!! My whole life been about nunt but<br>pimpin and doing everything else                    |
| 714 | From: 16782627471 Cell barna<br>Baby Phone GA | 12/7/2012 6:30:47 PM(UTC+0) | Read | (2/2) for everyone else maybe for once in my life i wanna look but<br>for my damn self                                                                                                   |
| 715 | From: 16782627471 Cell barna<br>Baby Phone GA | 12/7/2012 6:35:48 PM(UTC+0) | Read | Daddy you can't help who you love it doesn't make you a sucker i                                                                                                                         |
| 716 | From: 16782627471 Cell barna<br>Baby Phone GA | 12/7/2012 6:40:10 PM(UTC+0) | Read | How im trying to make you love her? Why would someone who<br>lover you wanna make you love another hoe                                                                                   |
| 717 | From: 16782627471 Cell barna<br>Baby Phone GA | 12/7/2012 6:45:22 PM(UTC+0) | Read | So is that why you were acting funny with me this mornin you didn't<br>even want me on you                                                                                               |
| 718 | From: 16782627471 Cell barna<br>Baby Phone GA | 12/7/2012 7:30:09 PM(UTC+0) | Read | Daddy                                                                                                                                                                                    |
| 719 | From: 16782627471 Cell barna<br>Baby Phone GA | 12/7/2012 7:38:08 PM(UTC+0) | Read | Im hungry                                                                                                                                                                                |
| 720 | From: 16782627471 Cell barna<br>Baby Phone GA | 12/7/2012 7:50:28 PM(UTC+0) | Read | Ok                                                                                                                                                                                       |
| 721 | From: 16782627471 Cell barna<br>Baby Phone GA | 12/7/2012 7:51:24 PM(UTC+0) | Read | i said ok i                                                                                                                                                                              |
| 722 | From: 14049900820 Jazy Be<br>Titties          | 12/7/2012 7:57:58 PM(UTC+0) | Read | Okay daddy                                                                                                                                                                               |
| 723 | From: 13038755052 Tasha<br>Montgomery         | 12/7/2012 7:58:13 PM(UTC+0) | Read | Ok My battery is low!                                                                                                                                                                    |

Asking  
go to the  
places

Insistin  
on doin  
things  
her way

2058

|      |                                                         |                             |      |                                                                                                                                            |
|------|---------------------------------------------------------|-----------------------------|------|--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|
| 1279 | To: 4702579037 Sunshine<br>To: 14702579037 Sunshine     | 1/7/2013 5:31:42 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Becky i gots get u some more clothes. U still the sexiest tho.                                                                             |
| 1280 | To: 4702579037 Sunshine<br>To: 14702579037 Sunshine     | 1/7/2013 5:32:49 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | My text not sending                                                                                                                        |
| 1281 | To: 4702579037 Sunshine<br>To: 14702579037 Sunshine     | 1/7/2013 5:38:28 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Yeah i just got to the cadl. Bouta tow it                                                                                                  |
| 1282 | To: 14702579037 Sunshine                                | 1/7/2013 5:45:42 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Ima drop the lac off in mississippi. Then go get the truck. Then come get u. Then u giving me head on the way to all to drop off the truck |
| 1283 | To: 14702579037 Sunshine                                | 1/7/2013 5:57:59 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Yes u not ever seeing them again                                                                                                           |
| 1284 | To: 14702579037 Sunshine                                | 1/7/2013 6:01:09 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Im coming to get u after i drop off the lac                                                                                                |
| 1285 | To: 14702579037 Sunshine                                | 1/7/2013 6:03:02 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | U really r slow lol                                                                                                                        |
| 1286 | To: 4702579037 Sunshine<br>To: 14702579037 Sunshine     | 1/7/2013 6:06:39 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Smh                                                                                                                                        |
| 1287 | To: 4047693703 Crab<br>To: 404-769-3703                 | 1/7/2013 6:17:42 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | B26 373 3209                                                                                                                               |
| 1288 | To: 4047693703 Crab<br>To: 404-769-3703                 | 1/7/2013 6:50:58 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Was in the shower                                                                                                                          |
| 1289 | To: 4702579037 Sunshine<br>To: 14702579037 Sunshine     | 1/7/2013 7:57:45 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Bee ima drop the lac off and let my phone charge n call u                                                                                  |
| 1290 | To: 14702579037 Sunshine                                | 1/7/2013 8:04:15 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Bout 10:00                                                                                                                                 |
| 1291 | To: 14702579037 Sunshine                                | 1/7/2013 8:09:36 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | I told u i gots drop the car off. Then go back to louisiana to get the truck b4 i get to u                                                 |
| 1292 | To: 14702579037 Sunshine                                | 1/7/2013 8:12:06 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | All                                                                                                                                        |
| 1293 | To: 14702579037 Sunshine                                | 1/7/2013 8:15:15 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Cuz i cant tow two cars at one time silly                                                                                                  |
| 1294 | To: 14702579037 Sunshine                                | 1/7/2013 8:20:27 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | O wait who got money to b driving all the way to atl and back. I got this munchkin. Jus b ready                                            |
| 1295 | To: 4702579037 Sunshine<br>To: 14702579037 Sunshine     | 1/7/2013 9:21:39 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | I was jus reading your text. So look carefully Coco so u can understand.                                                                   |
| 1296 | To: 4702579037 Sunshine<br>To: 14702579037 Sunshine     | 1/7/2013 9:27:43 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Yes cuz ima try to explain better.                                                                                                         |
| 1297 | To: 14702579037 Sunshine                                | 1/7/2013 9:47:47 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | When i'm done with the rental car i gots take it back to mississippi                                                                       |
| 1298 | To: 4702579037 Sunshine<br>To: 14702579037 Sunshine     | 1/7/2013 9:48:30 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | So that's why i'm leaving the lac there                                                                                                    |
| 1299 | To: 4702579037 Sunshine<br>To: 14702579037 Sunshine     | 1/7/2013 9:50:02 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Ima go back and get the truck and take it to atlanta so it can get fixed                                                                   |
| 1300 | To: 4702579037 Sunshine<br>To: 14702579037 Sunshine     | 1/7/2013 9:51:46 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Ima come back to mississippi to drop the car off and ima drive back to atl in the lac                                                      |
| 1301 | To: 4702579037 Sunshine<br>To: 14702579037 Sunshine     | 1/7/2013 10:12:23 PM(UTC+0) | Sent | Baby promise me u will not ever call the police on me again. And i promise i will never treat u like i treat tasha                         |
| 1302 | To: 3038755052 Princess<br>To: 303-875-5052             | 1/8/2013 1:02:07 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Arla                                                                                                                                       |
| 1303 | To: 4702579037 Sunshine<br>To: 14702579037 Sunshine     | 1/8/2013 1:13:49 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Leaving mississippi bee. It take for hours to get to u. So go ahead and go to where ima pick u up from                                     |
| 1304 | To: 4702579037 Sunshine<br>To: 14702579037 Sunshine     | 1/8/2013 1:14:58 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Yes lovebug                                                                                                                                |
| 1305 | To: 4702579037 Sunshine<br>To: 14702579037 Sunshine     | 1/8/2013 1:17:44 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | lol where u going to b at 11                                                                                                               |
| 1306 | To: 14702579037 Sunshine                                | 1/8/2013 1:20:00 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Hell yeah baby                                                                                                                             |
| 1307 | To: 14702579037 Sunshine                                | 1/8/2013 1:23:18 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Baby girl i love u and i need u y wud i not come                                                                                           |
| 1308 | To: 4702579037 Sunshine<br>To: 14702579037 Sunshine     | 1/8/2013 1:30:47 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Y                                                                                                                                          |
| 1309 | To: 14702579037 Sunshine                                | 1/8/2013 1:42:27 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Pimps aint like                                                                                                                            |
| 1310 | To: 14702579037 Sunshine                                | 1/8/2013 1:42:42 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Pimps aint like me.                                                                                                                        |
| 1311 | To: 4702579037 Sunshine<br>To: 14702579037 Sunshine     | 1/8/2013 1:45:33 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | U said u was made mistake and wena help me get d house an escalated so i forgave u                                                         |
| 1312 | To: 4702579037 Sunshine<br>To: 14702579037 Sunshine     | 1/8/2013 1:47:40 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | U r coming to love only me right?                                                                                                          |
| 1313 | To: 4702579037 Sunshine<br>To: 14702579037 Sunshine     | 1/8/2013 1:48:04 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | And help me right?                                                                                                                         |
| 1314 | To: 4702579037 Sunshine<br>To: 14702579037 Sunshine     | 1/8/2013 1:50:23 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | U coming to b my coco right?                                                                                                               |
| 1315 | To: 3038755052 Princess<br>To: 303-875-5052             | 1/8/2013 1:53:04 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Godd                                                                                                                                       |
| 1316 | To: 13038755052 Tasha<br>Montgomery<br>To: 303-875-5052 | 1/8/2013 1:55:35 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Outside                                                                                                                                    |
| 1317 | To: 4702579037 Sunshine<br>To: 14702579037 Sunshine     | 1/8/2013 1:58:29 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Ima b there dont worry.                                                                                                                    |
| 1318 | To: 4702579037 Sunshine<br>To: 14702579037 Sunshine     | 1/8/2013 1:59:10 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | ok love u 2 Did u eat today                                                                                                                |
| 1319 | To: 14702579037 Sunshine                                | 1/8/2013 3:14:45 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Yep im gud                                                                                                                                 |

2058

2094

2096

2102

2093

Intent to be Coco

|      |                                    |                             |      |                                                                                                                                                                   |
|------|------------------------------------|-----------------------------|------|-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|
| 2075 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/7/2013 10:54:56 PM(UTC+0) | Read | I Promise <His Lil Coco>3>                                                                                                                                        |
| 2076 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/7/2013 11:02:53 PM(UTC+0) | Read | Are you sure this what you want ? <His Lil Coco>3>                                                                                                                |
| 2077 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/8/2013 12:12:42 AM(UTC+0) | Read | Daddy <His Lil Coco>3>                                                                                                                                            |
| 2078 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/8/2013 12:51:27 AM(UTC+0) | Read | Call or text me haven't heard nuth from u <His Lil Coco>3>                                                                                                        |
| 2079 | From: 13038755052 Tasha Montgomery | 1/8/2013 1:00:06 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | He got 130 for the hr ... ima short em                                                                                                                            |
| 2080 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/8/2013 1:14:43 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | U said it take 4 hours <His Lil Coco>3>                                                                                                                           |
| 2081 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/8/2013 1:17:32 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | Ok then love monkey : <His Lil Coco>3>                                                                                                                            |
| 2082 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/8/2013 1:19:30 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | Idk yet if u sure u coming <His Lil Coco>3>                                                                                                                       |
| 2083 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/8/2013 1:22:35 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | Dont make me leave if u not coming <His Lil Coco>3>                                                                                                               |
| 2084 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/8/2013 1:30:11 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | Im scared for my life honestly <His Lil Coco>3>                                                                                                                   |
| 2085 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/8/2013 1:32:07 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | Because I know how Pimps are when u snitch <His Lil Coco>3>                                                                                                       |
| 2086 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/8/2013 1:32:38 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | Because I know how Pimps are when u snitch <His Lil Coco>3>                                                                                                       |
| 2087 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/8/2013 1:45:11 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | (1/2) Well if you wanna whoop my ass just save us time do it and tell me that's what you trying to are get the girls to jump me let me know nls instead of go!    |
| 2088 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/8/2013 1:48:07 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | (2/2) me thinking everythings ok <His Lil Coco>3>                                                                                                                 |
| 2089 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/8/2013 1:47:08 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | Ok <His Lil Coco>3>                                                                                                                                               |
| 2090 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/8/2013 1:47:38 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | (2/2) me thinking everythings ok <His Lil Coco>3>                                                                                                                 |
| 2091 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/8/2013 1:47:39 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | Ok <His Lil Coco>3>                                                                                                                                               |
| 2092 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/8/2013 1:48:47 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | What do you mean <His Lil Coco>3>                                                                                                                                 |
| 2093 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/8/2013 1:52:05 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | Yeah im coming to be ya coco but idk now i know ur official on the way things running through my mind <His Lil Coco>3>                                            |
| 2094 | From: 13038755052 Tasha Montgomery | 1/8/2013 1:54:49 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | I'm FINE HES LEAVING                                                                                                                                              |
| 2095 | From: 13038755052 Tasha Montgomery | 1/8/2013 1:55:25 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | Where r u                                                                                                                                                         |
| 2096 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/8/2013 1:58:45 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | I love u and call me when u can <His Lil Coco>3>                                                                                                                  |
| 2097 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/8/2013 1:58:47 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | Yeah <His Lil Coco>3>                                                                                                                                             |
| 2098 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/8/2013 2:01:38 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | I been craving choco fries for two days that's all I been eating <His Lil Coco>3>                                                                                 |
| 2099 | From: 13038755052 Tasha Montgomery | 1/8/2013 2:04:58 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | (1/2) I wanted him to leave a long time ago. I told u I was gon short his time. Jus thought u would've sent n jasmine to help make em leave like u always do      |
| 2100 | From: 13038755052 Tasha Montgomery | 1/8/2013 2:05:03 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | (2/2) her dates. That date inflated the fuck outa me jus so u know what's wrong!                                                                                  |
| 2101 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/8/2013 2:19:54 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | And im on my period <His Lil Coco>3>                                                                                                                              |
| 2102 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/8/2013 3:08:08 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | You ok ? <His Lil Coco>3>                                                                                                                                         |
| 2103 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/8/2013 3:15:30 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | Im with my friend now so hurry up and get here <His Lil Coco>3>                                                                                                   |
| 2104 | From: 13038755052 Tasha Montgomery | 1/8/2013 3:22:23 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | Maybe tomorrow u and i can give each other some stress relief? Lots speak Greek koi! Can I ask u something?                                                       |
| 2105 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/8/2013 3:24:00 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | Good <His Lil Coco>3>                                                                                                                                             |
| 2106 | From: 13038755052 Tasha Montgomery | 1/8/2013 3:25:48 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | (1/2) Does jasmine tell u she loves u? Do u tell her the same back? I ask cuz that day u were chewing me out I was in the bathroom n u said "dnt telme u love me" |
| 2107 | From: 13038755052 Tasha Montgomery | 1/8/2013 3:28:23 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | (2/2) or ill knock ur teeth out!                                                                                                                                  |
| 2108 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/8/2013 3:28:37 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | You coming from Mississippi or Louisiana ? <His Lil Coco>3>                                                                                                       |
| 2109 | From: 13038755052 Tasha Montgomery | 1/8/2013 3:29:58 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | U tell her back huh?                                                                                                                                              |
| 2110 | From: 13038755052 Tasha Montgomery | 1/8/2013 3:30:29 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | Huh.                                                                                                                                                              |
| 2111 | From: 13038755052 Tasha Montgomery | 1/8/2013 3:38:52 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | (1/2) Its ok. I'm accepting the fact that u tell all the girls the same thing so they say. I get it. I do I'm also accepting the fact that there's nothing        |
| 2112 | From: 13038755052 Tasha Montgomery | 1/8/2013 3:40:22 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | (2/2) that makes me anymore special than neome else ... I'm jus the same n thats all id bi I got u!                                                               |
| 2113 | From: 13038755052 Tasha Montgomery | 1/8/2013 3:50:42 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | As much as I wana b jus that someone special for somebody ill always jus b UR hoel this is a sober mind speaking! My date is here!                                |
| 2114 | From: 13038755052 Tasha Montgomery | 1/8/2013 3:55:35 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | (2/2) that makes me anymore special than neome else ... I'm jus the same n thats all id bi I got u!                                                               |
| 2115 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/8/2013 4:14:30 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | Aye this my ex im with so he probably gonna tnp <His Lil Coco>3>                                                                                                  |
| 2116 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/8/2013 4:18:20 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | Ok <His Lil Coco>3>                                                                                                                                               |
| 2117 | From: 13038755052 Tasha Montgomery | 1/8/2013 4:18:22 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | My date jus left! He brought 30! ill try!                                                                                                                         |
| 2118 | From: 13038755052 Tasha Montgomery | 1/8/2013 4:26:37 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | U tried to make me feel soooo special at one time! Then u took it all away from me!                                                                               |
| 2119 | From: 13038755052 Tasha Montgomery | 1/8/2013 4:48:05 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | (1/2) I will but I doubt that changes nehting! As long as u tell other girls the same thing u tell me wll never make me feel special.. but that's how u pimp      |

Shows again why they call after.

Appendix F

|     |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              |
|-----|------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|
| 14. | <input type="checkbox"/> No subject<br>Deleted: Intact    Timestamp: 12/15/2012 7:22:32 AM(UTC+0)    Priority: Normal    Status: Default<br><hr/> From: 8787555217<br>To: 14702579037 Sunshine<br>Name:<br><p><i>Shows me willing to take her home or where ever she want to go. If she was not happy</i> ←</p> <p>U know its wrong. As u can't give up too. All i tried to do since u been here us try to make u happy. And i try to make u understand me and what come wit me but u dont believe nobody so y have the extra stress trying to keep somebody around who dont want to stay. Ima get both of yal where yal need to go and ima start over</p> <p>text_0.txt    <i>Shows No Undue Influence</i>    email.xml</p> |
| 15  | <input type="checkbox"/> No subject<br>Deleted: Intact    Timestamp: 12/25/2012 6:43:31 PM(UTC+0)    Priority: Normal    Status: Default<br><hr/> From: 8787555217<br>To: 14042343381 007<br>Name:<br><p>IMG_20120624_143648.jpg    email.xml</p>                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            |
| 16  | <input type="checkbox"/> No subject<br>Deleted: Intact    Timestamp: 12/26/2012 3:58:26 PM(UTC+0)    Priority: Normal    Status: Default<br><hr/> From: 8787555217<br>To: 14042343381 007<br>Name:<br><p>Did it snow in cleveland</p> <p>IMG_20121226_095710.jpg    email.xml    text_0.txt</p>                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              |
| 17  | <input type="checkbox"/> No subject<br>Deleted: Intact    Timestamp: 12/26/2012 3:59:14 PM(UTC+0)    Priority: Normal    Status: Default<br><hr/> From: 8787555217<br>To: 14042343381 007<br>Name:<br><p>IMG_20121226_011311.jpg    email.xml</p>                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            |
| 18  | <input type="checkbox"/> No subject<br>Deleted: Intact    Timestamp: 12/28/2012 8:15:00 PM(UTC+0)    Priority: Normal    Status: Default<br><hr/> From: 8787555217<br>To: 4702579037 Sunshine<br>Name:<br><p>IMG_20121005_204909-1.jpg    email.xml</p>                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      |

*Showing that I was not trying to force her to stay and her Jealousy/Insecurit. caused her to call police.*

*Appendix F*

|      |                                    |                             |      |                                                                                                                                                                  |
|------|------------------------------------|-----------------------------|------|------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|
| 1584 | From: 16786075054 Exotic 2 GA      | 1/1/2013 12:48:36 PM(UTC+0) | Read | Who's diz..                                                                                                                                                      |
| 1585 | From: 14042343381 007              | 1/1/2013 3:17:21 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | Happy New Year..                                                                                                                                                 |
| 1586 | From: 17883905788 Bailman          | 1/1/2013 7:25:14 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | Hey, Prospero And Nuevo. Call me when u have a few minutes. Bai Bailman                                                                                          |
| 1587 | From: 6789271738 Pooh Pooh         | 1/1/2013 7:53:42 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | Hey cuzzo i start school this Friday & my bday in 3 weeks.                                                                                                       |
| 1588 | From: 16786075054 Exotic 2 GA      | 1/1/2013 8:41:08 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | Wet bar from downtown                                                                                                                                            |
| 1589 | From: 16786075054 Exotic 2 GA      | 1/1/2013 8:45:12 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | Ok Wat my name cuz sometimes my girls be give out my number if they dont want to talk to the person                                                              |
| 1590 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/1/2013 8:55:37 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | What you getting us to fat my stomach hurts <His Winner >                                                                                                        |
| 1591 | From: 17275349019 Celenna Phone FL | 1/1/2013 8:57:21 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | Happy New Years )                                                                                                                                                |
| 1592 | From: 17275349019 Celenna Phone FL | 1/1/2013 8:57:40 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | Yr brother hasn't called u yet?!                                                                                                                                 |
| 1593 | From: 13038755052 Tasha Montgomery | 1/1/2013 9:06:04 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | My late happy newyr text! HAPPY NEW YEAR THIS WILL B A BETTER YEAR! XOXOXO                                                                                       |
| 1594 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/1/2013 10:12:59 PM(UTC+0) | Read | (1/2) I just called my grandpa and he said that my mama was the one who said she would tell me that didn't nobody have to worry about telling me she told my     |
| 1595 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/1/2013 10:13:36 PM(UTC+0) | Read | (2/2) grandpa that she told me and i said i didn't care if she was in the hospital that i had a new family :-( <His Winner >                                     |
| 1596 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/1/2013 10:15:36 PM(UTC+0) | Read | (1/2) Why would somebody do that ??? My grandma went the world to me how could she just not tell me she was dying how could she just lie and say i had a new     |
| 1597 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/1/2013 10:16:04 PM(UTC+0) | Read | (2/2) family and i didn't want to care ? <His Winner >                                                                                                           |
| 1598 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/1/2013 10:20:36 PM(UTC+0) | Read | But now i hate her and im trying so hard not to cry <His Winner >                                                                                                |
| 1599 | From: 16786075054 Exotic 2 GA      | 1/1/2013 10:41:09 PM(UTC+0) | Read | ??                                                                                                                                                               |
| 1600 | From: 13038755052 Tasha Montgomery | 1/1/2013 11:58:04 PM(UTC+0) | Read | I think he's bullshitting he still not here                                                                                                                      |
| 1601 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/2/2013 12:07:54 AM(UTC+0) | Read | Thank you i been missing it too just was waiting for you to give it to me <Boss Chick >                                                                          |
| 1602 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/2/2013 12:17:03 AM(UTC+0) | Read | I love you daddy :) <Boss Chick >                                                                                                                                |
| 1603 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/2/2013 12:22:04 AM(UTC+0) | Read | My grandpa wants me to come home <Boss Chick >                                                                                                                   |
| 1604 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/2/2013 12:37:19 AM(UTC+0) | Read | My grandpa told me if i don't stop doing this give up prmps and come back home then i can't come to the funeral <Boss Chick >                                    |
| 1605 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/2/2013 12:45:53 AM(UTC+0) | Read | (1/3) My grandma was the only person who understood me and always told me if i thought this was what i wanted to do with my life then don't let anybody stand in |
| 1606 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/2/2013 12:48:18 AM(UTC+0) | Read | (2/3) the way of that or tell you not to do it my grandma will understand if im not there for the funeral ima make her proud and make something of myself        |
| 1607 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/2/2013 12:48:21 AM(UTC+0) | Read | (3/3) <Boss Chick >                                                                                                                                              |
| 1608 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/2/2013 12:54:00 AM(UTC+0) | Read | She was the only person who supported me <Boss Chick >                                                                                                           |
| 1609 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/2/2013 12:57:59 AM(UTC+0) | Read | (1/2) Yeah i know but my grandma always knew exactly what to say to me she never made me feel like i was anything less she always made me feel like her          |
| 1610 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/2/2013 12:58:28 AM(UTC+0) | Read | (2/2) angel no matter what i choose to do she never turned her back on me <Boss Chick >                                                                          |
| 1611 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/2/2013 12:58:35 AM(UTC+0) | Read | (1/2) Yeah i know but my grandma always knew exactly what to say to me she never made me feel like i was anything less she always made me feel like her          |
| 1612 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/2/2013 1:20:26 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | I really got something on my mind but let ima keep it to myself even though its some funny shit but ays i got better things to worry about <Boss Chick >         |
| 1613 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/2/2013 1:24:25 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | I think its best for me to go home so can you get me there <Boss Chick >                                                                                         |
| 1614 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/2/2013 1:42:42 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | Why did you say what <Boss Chick >                                                                                                                               |
| 1615 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/2/2013 1:46:04 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | (1/2) its just something i feel i should do i been thinking a lot then i heard something that didnt sit well with my stomach on most made me sick but i can wait |
| 1616 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/2/2013 1:46:32 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | (2/2) to bring nobody name up cause she don't want to get in trouble <Boss Chick >                                                                               |
| 1617 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/2/2013 1:48:46 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | But i didnt look at em i heard about yo videos i And on top of everything i was going through didnt make anything better <Boss Chick >                           |
| 1618 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/2/2013 1:52:13 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | Thats all you can say smh maybe i made a mistake i guess <Boss Chick >                                                                                           |
| 1619 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/2/2013 1:58:33 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | (1/3) And i cant ask to hear about then from the date i was told it was last month so i left everything alone i and been looking for nothing to make me mad but  |
| 1620 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/2/2013 1:58:01 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | (2/3) its funny how we use protection but you fuck the raw smh but i really dont care about the videos its the fact you lied to me and said you wasn't even      |
| 1621 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/2/2013 1:59:04 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | (3/3) fuckin ha all i ever asked was not to be lied to or hurt <Boss Chick >                                                                                     |
| 1622 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine         | 1/2/2013 2:02:35 AM(UTC+0)  | Read | ok i believe you <Boss Chick >                                                                                                                                   |

\*P38 sent

My response shows I was even willing to get her home

Appendix F

SEE BACK SIDE

|     |                                                                           |                             |      |                                                                                                                                                  |
|-----|---------------------------------------------------------------------------|-----------------------------|------|--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|
| 927 | To: 18788075054 Exotic 2 GA<br>To: 678-607-5054                           | 1/1/2013 8:42:33 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Benanna wind. It was about a month ago. U had your girlfriend with u.                                                                            |
| 928 | To: 7082670591 Joy Jersey 2<br>To: 706-267-0591                           | 1/1/2013 9:17:32 PM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Hay I tned to return your call. Is everything gud?                                                                                               |
| 929 | To: 14702579037 Sunshine                                                  | 1/1/2013 10:13:32 PM(UTC+0) | Sent | Dam thats fucked up                                                                                                                              |
| 930 | To: 14702579037 Sunshine                                                  | 1/1/2013 10:18:16 PM(UTC+0) | Sent | She evil all she care bout is her having u around                                                                                                |
| 931 | To: 14702579037 Sunshine                                                  | 1/2/2013 12:08:51 AM(UTC+0) | Sent | ;-)                                                                                                                                              |
| 932 | To: 14702579037 Sunshine                                                  | 1/2/2013 12:18:28 AM(UTC+0) | Sent | Love u too baby                                                                                                                                  |
| 933 | To: 14702579037 Sunshine                                                  | 1/2/2013 12:37:44 AM(UTC+0) | Sent | What u going to do                                                                                                                               |
| 934 | To: 14702579037 Sunshine                                                  | 1/2/2013 12:54:43 AM(UTC+0) | Sent | I support u                                                                                                                                      |
| 935 | To: 7275349019 Calenna<br>Phone FL<br>To: 17275349019 Calenna<br>Phone FL | 1/2/2013 1:17:48 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Tim calling now                                                                                                                                  |
| 936 | To: 4702579037 Sunshine<br>To: 14702579037 Sunshine                       | 1/2/2013 1:41:52 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | What?                                                                                                                                            |
| 937 | To: 14702579037 Sunshine                                                  | 1/2/2013 1:43:26 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | What u mean its best u go home                                                                                                                   |
| 938 | To: 4702579037 Sunshine<br>To: 14702579037 Sunshine                       | 1/2/2013 1:47:21 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Aie                                                                                                                                              |
| 939 | To: 14702579037 Sunshine                                                  | 1/2/2013 1:49:19 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Aie                                                                                                                                              |
| 940 | To: 14702579037 Sunshine                                                  | 1/2/2013 1:54:53 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | I aint bouta talk to u out no old ass videos. I dont even kno u then. But whatever. If u will let patty snif like that fuck wit u maybe u did    |
| 941 | To: 14702579037 Sunshine                                                  | 1/2/2013 2:01:04 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | I told u we use to fuck. And those videos wasnt last month it was may but ok                                                                     |
| 942 | To: 14049000820 Jazy Bell<br>Titties                                      | 1/2/2013 2:03:58 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Lol its cool                                                                                                                                     |
| 943 | To: 14702579037 Sunshine                                                  | 1/2/2013 2:31:02 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Ok                                                                                                                                               |
| 944 | To: 13038755052 Tasha<br>Montgomery<br>To: 303-875-5052                   | 1/2/2013 3:28:00 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | No we going to get something cheaper                                                                                                             |
| 945 | To: 13038755052 Tasha<br>Montgomery<br>To: 303-875-5052                   | 1/2/2013 4:28:50 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | When I get it                                                                                                                                    |
| 946 | To: 13038755052 Tasha<br>Montgomery<br>To: 303-875-5052                   | 1/2/2013 4:32:49 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Im bring to a some more money come in b4 I make another expensive food run. Wouldnt expect u to understand.                                      |
| 947 | To: 13038755052 TASHA<br>Montgomery<br>To: 303-875-5052                   | 1/2/2013 4:45:19 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Then how do u explain the weight u lost when I was away. Wasnt telling u when to eat then. U r a stresser thats y u loose weight                 |
| 948 | To: 3038755052 Princess<br>To: 303-875-5052                               | 1/2/2013 4:50:51 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Go get a menu from lucky palace                                                                                                                  |
| 949 | To: 12027049054 Jada<br>To: 202-704-9054                                  | 1/2/2013 5:17:23 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Yeah they really wasnt clear to start wit. I did what I could. u need more light when u taking pics                                              |
| 950 | To: 2027049054 Jada<br>To: 202-704-9054                                   | 1/2/2013 5:26:32 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Go work my li spot in atlanta. When I get back ima get my camera a man take u some pro pics.                                                     |
| 951 | To: 13038755052 TASHA<br>Montgomery<br>To: 303-875-5052                   | 1/2/2013 5:34:16 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | What I loose weight cuz stressing                                                                                                                |
| 952 | To: 2027049054 Jada<br>To: 202-704-9054                                   | 1/2/2013 5:34:58 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Hoing dont make u loose weight                                                                                                                   |
| 953 | To: 2027049054 Jada<br>To: 202-704-9054                                   | 1/2/2013 5:36:03 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | All u do is lay around reath and u still stress                                                                                                  |
| 954 | To: 2027049054 Jada<br>To: 202-704-9054                                   | 1/2/2013 5:38:56 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Naw cuz I got harded hoas that make me smoke a thousand cigarettes                                                                               |
| 955 | To: 2027049054 Jada<br>To: 202-704-9054                                   | 1/2/2013 5:37:54 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | And if I had hoas I didnt have to stress over I would b gud.                                                                                     |
| 956 | To: 3038755052 Princess<br>To: 303-875-5052                               | 1/2/2013 5:38:58 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Hoing dont make u loose weight                                                                                                                   |
| 957 | To: 3038755052 Princess<br>To: 303-875-5052                               | 1/2/2013 5:39:46 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | All u do is lay around reath and u still stress                                                                                                  |
| 958 | To: 2027049054 Jada<br>To: 202-704-9054                                   | 1/2/2013 5:41:18 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | I was text my brich and sent that to u by mistake. Pimp got ekote going on my bed                                                                |
| 959 | To: 3038755052 Princess<br>To: 303-875-5052                               | 1/2/2013 5:41:56 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Naw cuz I got harded hoas that make me smoke a thousand cigarettes                                                                               |
| 960 | To: 3038755052 Princess<br>To: 303-875-5052                               | 1/2/2013 5:42:36 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | And if I had hoas I didnt have to stress over I would b gud                                                                                      |
| 961 | To: 3038755052 Princess<br>To: 303-875-5052                               | 1/2/2013 5:44:48 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | And wd u trns saying hoing fucking up yo life. Well quit and go do some square shit... and then what u going to blame for d fucking up your life |
| 962 | To: 2027049054 Jada<br>To: 202-704-9054                                   | 1/2/2013 6:00:07 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | So u going to fuck wit atlanta for bout a week                                                                                                   |
| 963 | To: 2027049054 Jada<br>To: 202-704-9054                                   | 1/2/2013 6:08:19 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Let me know how that go.                                                                                                                         |
| 964 | To: 14702579037 Sunshine                                                  | 1/2/2013 7:11:07 AM(UTC+0)  | Sent | Wtf                                                                                                                                              |

*This is  
My reply to her  
wanting to go home*

Appendix F

|      |                            |                             |      |                                                                                                                                                                  |
|------|----------------------------|-----------------------------|------|------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|
| 1758 | From: 14042343381 007      | 1/4/2013 7:28:46 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | Not sure what u r asking me to do (except marry u).                                                                                                              |
| 1757 | From: 14042343381 007      | 1/4/2013 7:33:40 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | Where the other 2 bitches. Imma fuck them up for leavin my boy.                                                                                                  |
| 1758 | From: 14042343381 007      | 1/4/2013 7:37:28 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | Sure. I can't send it now cuz at work then got plans after work. But I can send tomorrow.                                                                        |
| 1759 | From: 14042343381 007      | 1/4/2013 7:38:07 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | I still haven't gotten my "gift" from fixing the lac last time plus my Christmas gift plus my bday is coming up.                                                 |
| 1760 | From: 14042343381 007      | 1/4/2013 7:38:40 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | Damn I think I might switch for a Bentley coupe ( rather than a broke down lac)                                                                                  |
| 1761 | From: 14042343381 007      | 1/4/2013 7:41:20 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | Although I'm sure u r hotter than the Bentley driver. Can't trust those white hoers lol                                                                          |
| 1762 | From: 14042343381 007      | 1/4/2013 7:45:24 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | Txt me in the morning and let me know where to send the \$\$ I have my trainer at 10:00                                                                          |
| 1763 | From: 14042343381 007      | 1/4/2013 7:55:41 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | I start at 9 and over at 10                                                                                                                                      |
| 1764 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine | 1/4/2013 7:58:34 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | So is you gonna look 4 me you want me to make it easy <Boss Chick>                                                                                               |
| 1765 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine | 1/4/2013 8:01:42 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | K where you                                                                                                                                                      |
| 1766 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine | 1/4/2013 8:03:31 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | K it'll be there <Boss Chick>                                                                                                                                    |
| 1767 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine | 1/4/2013 8:20:17 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | So you wanna beat my ass or make yo 500 back<Boss Chick>                                                                                                         |
| 1768 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine | 1/4/2013 8:24:39 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | I mean sound like you wanna beat my ass                                                                                                                          |
| 1769 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine | 1/4/2013 8:30:35 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | (1/5) Hope you think it was dumb I got my things as not like you can call and get it out lol no password I thought about everything I did and how I would        |
| 1770 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine | 1/4/2013 8:48:27 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | (2/5) do if you going to jail was not part of the plan but you did Im not sorry for nothing I did shit I know how hard it is when you already called diskoyal so |
| 1771 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine | 1/4/2013 8:48:29 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | (3/5) of course why would I stick around If you would have gave me my phone instead of trying to take it away I wouldn't have did anything but I guess we all    |
| 1772 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine | 1/4/2013 8:48:30 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | (4/5) learn you ain't no true pimp to me you couldn't even hold me down I never was truly diskoyal I had you thinking I was but eye you can play mind games so   |
| 1773 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine | 1/4/2013 8:48:32 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | (5/5) can I <Boss Chick>                                                                                                                                         |
| 1774 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine | 1/4/2013 8:53:05 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | Im come make yo money but lets get an understand Im not yo hoe your bitch shit somebody paying back is it                                                        |
| 1775 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine | 1/4/2013 9:08:41 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | Yeah I know Im always a bitch and a hoe but Im not yours and I wasnt always out me pocket but you made me that way I was happy you always stole my joy           |
| 1776 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine | 1/4/2013 9:12:30 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | (1/2) Yep you did and always called me out of pocket I wasnt gonna \$4 around while you did all that you just told me what I wanted to hear to keep me around so |
| 1777 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine | 1/4/2013 9:12:58 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | (2/2) <Boss Chick>                                                                                                                                               |
| 1778 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine | 1/4/2013 9:23:45 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | (2/2) Imma sit back and smile I was willing to get yo money back for you but I aint scared of you cause my caddy not gonna let you get near me                   |
| 1779 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine | 1/4/2013 9:23:47 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | (1/2) Lol so what is tasha man that bitch leaving soon as yall got to Atlanta since you begged her to stay yo team falling apart right in yo face and when it do |
| 1780 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine | 1/4/2013 9:25:49 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | (1/2) My mistake was ever making myself believe I wanted to be yours the worst mistake I really made was thinking you were different and you actually cared you  |
| 1781 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine | 1/4/2013 9:28:18 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | (2/2) just through something in my face I trusted and told you I But Im done with this Im gone                                                                   |
| 1782 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine | 1/4/2013 9:34:58 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | (1/3) It thats how you feel ok boss! Like you said Im never gonna be nothing right I rather you fuck my face up so you can just leave me alone ok I know I made  |
| 1783 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine | 1/4/2013 9:34:58 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | (2/3) a mistake I dont wanna talk to you anymore ok Im done with everything I said I loved you cause I did I got wrapped up in other things I understand I got   |
| 1784 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine | 1/4/2013 9:34:59 PM(UTC+0)  | Read | (3/3) out of pocket but like not said right Ima always be a rape victim its good to see how you really felt about me bye                                         |
| 1785 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine | 1/4/2013 10:25:26 PM(UTC+0) | Read | What?                                                                                                                                                            |
| 1786 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine | 1/4/2013 10:38:43 PM(UTC+0) | Read | Man soon as yo hoers see me they gonna start acting crazy with you                                                                                               |
| 1787 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine | 1/4/2013 10:41:47 PM(UTC+0) | Read | I bet they do! Im good you can come to me and come fuck my face up Im not even gonna put more stress on me that I cant handle                                    |
| 1788 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine | 1/4/2013 10:45:02 PM(UTC+0) | Read | I rather you just to so I can move on ok I fucked up I know what I lost but all I can do is keep my head up and move on                                          |
| 1789 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine | 1/4/2013 10:51:22 PM(UTC+0) | Read | Stop please ok just stop                                                                                                                                         |
| 1790 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine | 1/4/2013 10:52:26 PM(UTC+0) | Read | STOP!!!                                                                                                                                                          |
| 1791 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine | 1/4/2013 10:53:34 PM(UTC+0) | Read | Please stop textin me!! Just leave me alone                                                                                                                      |
| 1792 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine | 1/4/2013 10:57:38 PM(UTC+0) | Read | Im getting on a bus in an hour                                                                                                                                   |
| 1793 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine | 1/4/2013 11:01:18 PM(UTC+0) | Read | (1/2) I already made plans to go home I sent you to jail I feel bad enough but Im scared for my life now I know the consequences for what I caused Im not stupid |
| 1794 | From: 14702579037 Sunshine | 1/4/2013 11:01:54 PM(UTC+0) | Read | (2/2) everything your telling me now is probably just a set up like I said if you want to hurt me come do it dont waste your time trying to set me up            |

20225 Phone

Appendix F

Mrs. Rencie

I want to start off by saying thank you for caring about me so much because you have been there for me for a while now and I'm grateful. Since you're always there for me I think I owe you the truth. The day we got pulled up, (I only told him because I didn't want a weed charge on my record.) Mrs. Rencie (I wasn't being held against my will at all) I guess I didn't want to admit it to myself but the truth is (I<sup>1</sup> knew what I was doing) when I left Birmingham. The first time I left Birmingham (I knew he had his own ← 3 business) Boss didn't force me to leave home ← 4 the second time) He threatened me after I called the police yeah he did that much and I agreed to come back and I told him where I was. I loved him I admit but I knew after we got pulled over and I snitched (I had to make sure he stayed in jail) because I knew him so well to know what's going to happen to me. Truth being told Mrs. Rencie he wasn't my first ← 7- pimp, I have had four all together. I<sup>2</sup> knew what I was getting myself into. I met him on a dating website called Tagged. The truth was I only met him at the end of October, I guess

Appendix G

I was scared and told things that weren't true ← →  
and because I didn't tell the truth, I don't  
want have nothing to do with the case) I can't ← →  
keep somebody behind bars who didn't know  
I was a runaway much less 17, he thought I  
was 18, I finally told him I was 17 in stockbridge.  
Mrs. Force me being here has made my heart  
cleaned and I am telling everything I don't want  
to lie anymore because I spent my whole life  
living a lie and now God has forgiven me because  
my sins than I need to tell the whole truth.

Close to the end of October, I was checking  
my messages and I opened one from Johnathan  
and he was telling me all these good things  
I wanted to hear and I knew he was a pimp  
just by the way he was talking but I gave  
him my number and then we started talking.  
My mama and I got to arguing shortly  
after and then I was having problems being  
on my own, I was 17 and I had so much  
going on so I finally agreed to leave with  
him that Thanksgiving day, but truthfully  
I already knew what I was getting myself  
into, the only thing I didn't know about was  
Tasha and Jasmine. I played the part he wanted,  
and then I got tired I wanted to leave I

Appendix G

wanted to quit but in his eyes I was his now,  
once again I got myself in something I  
couldn't escape. Beside the first and the last  
part everything else was the truth. At the  
end I called the police and they came and  
I called a trick to come get me and my mama  
couldn't afford a ticket so I was in Louisiana  
for two more days. The next morning after  
he got arrested he got out and then came  
the threats, I barely could fall asleep but  
I did and when I woke up I had messages  
so I couldn't do anything but play along  
with him, because I knew what he could  
do and what he would do, so I told him  
I would come back. I let him know when I  
got on the bus, actually now that I was away  
from him he wanted to talk to me 24-7. Two  
or three days past and he was ready for me to  
come home so I did. I lied to my mama told  
her I was going to my cousin house, so my  
ex beau came and got me and then John came  
at 2 in the morning and just like that I was  
gone. It was willing but I guess at the same  
time it was against my will because I knew  
what he would do to me, he wouldn't stop  
till he found me. Mrs. Rence I had to tell

you the truth because God saved me, he gave me a second chance, and I know that it was time to tell the truth and I am. I'm not going to say it's all his fault because I honestly don't blame him and honestly I see him as a blessing because I got a second chance, I got a second chance to a future, my second chance made me thank God for my mama, it just made me understand everything and I was taking everything for granted but now I understand. I put all things in Christ Jesus and he has strengthened me.

Sincerely,

